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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEMN THAT THE S0TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS
OF MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED WILL EE HELD ON, MONDAY, 22ND SEPTEMBER, 2025 AT 11:30
AM.(1ST) THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (“VC")/ OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS ("OAVM")
TOTRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS(ES):

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To consider and adopt the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors therean:

“RESOLVED THAT the awdited financial statement ofthe Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 and the reporis of the Board of Direciors and Auditors thereon, as drouiated 1o
the membears, be and are hersby considered and sdopied.”

To appeint a director in the place of Mr. Naresh Jain (DIN: 00281263), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment:

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sachion 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Maresh Jain (DIN: 00291963), who refires by nolation
at this maating be and is hereby appointed a5 a Diractor of the Comparny.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.

To Appointment of M/s, Suprabhat & Co, a peer reviewed firm of practicing Company
Secrataries, as Secretarial Auditor of the Company:

In this regand, to consider and if thought fil, to pass, with or without modification{s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Seclion 204 and ofher spplicabls provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act. 2013 (hereinafter referred 1o as the “Act’}, read with Companias
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rues, 2014 {including any statulory
rmodifcation or re-enactment thareofl for the ime being inforce ) and Raegulation 2480l Securilias
and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obhigations and Disclosure Hequiremenis) Regulations,
2015 ("SEBI Listing Reqgulations"} and such clher applicable provisions If any, and on tha
recommendation of Audif Committze and Board of Directors of the company, W's, Suprabhat &
Cov., a paar reviewad firm of Practicing Company Secrelanes, being eligibke, be and s hereby
gppointad as Secretarial Auddor ofthe Company fora term of Five (5] consecutive fimancial years
commencing from the conclusion of the ensuing 50th Annual General Meating till the conclusion
of B3thAnnual General Maeting to be held in the yoar 2030 (i.e. io conduct the Secretarial Audii
for 5 financial year from 2025 26 to 2028-30), on such remuneration as recommended by the
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Audit Committes and as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Direciors of the Company
and Secretarial Auditors from tima (o tme.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (the 'Board' which term includes a duly
constituted Committee of the Board) be and is hereby authornized to take all such steps as maybe
nacassary, proper and expediant to give affect to this Resalution.”

By Order of Board
For MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED
Sdi-
PRERMNA MEHTA
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Place: Mumbal
Date :21.08.2025

]
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NOTES

1 The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, M3 ("Act’) in respect of [tem
Mos. 3 of the accompanying Motica, (s annexad herelo. Further, disclosures in relation to tarm
Moz, 2 of the Nolice, a5 required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Lisling Regulations®) and
‘Gecretarial Standard 2 on General Meefings' issued by the Institute of Company Secretarnies of
India ("S5-2") forrms an integral part of this Notice,

2 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*WMCA") vide its General Gireular Mo, 0872024 dated September 19,
2024 read with circulars issued earber on the subject {"MWMCA Circulars™1and SEBE videa its Circular
Ma, SEBIHOWCFRICFD-PoD-2/P/CIRAZ20240133 dated Oolobsar 3, 2024 read with the cirtuilars
Issued earlier on the subject ("SEBI Circulars™), have permitted to conduct the Annual General
Meating ("AGM" ) virdually, without physical presence of Members at a common venuea.

In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the provisions of the Act and the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the 50th AGM of the Company is being hald virtually.

Tha Molice corvaning S0th AGM akong with the Infegrated Annual Repor for FY25 is being sani
by electronic made 1o those Members whose e-mall address is registerad with 1hie Company/
Depositories, unless a Member has specifically requested for a physical copy
of the same, Members may kindly rofe that the Motice convening 50th AGM and Infegraled
.Pu.nmal Report for F“r’ Eﬂﬂd—ﬁﬂﬂﬁ mII also be avalable on the Company's websie

. 5 gl-Fe ebsita of the Stock Exchangesie. BSE Limited
I;H-SE} al A, bsanrl-dla 0T, Malmp{:hmn Stock Exchange of India Limited (M3E) ai
wwwe.msai.in and Tha Caloutia Stock Exchange Limited wwaaycee-india.com and on the wabsita
of Mational Securiies Depaository Limited (MSDL) at www.evoting.rsdl.com. The Company will
also publish an advertisement in the newspapers containing details of the S0th AGM and other
refevant information for Members viz. manner of registening a-mail id,, Cut-off data for e-valing,
Book Closure dale etc.

3 In accordance with the provisions of the Act, read with the Rules made thereunder and pursuani
bo Circulars, since the 50th AGM of the Company i baing hald through VCIOAYM, physical
attendancs of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointmeant of
proxies by the Members will not be avaiable for theB0thAGM and hence the Proxy Form,
Aftendance Slip and Route Mapare not annexead to this Motice.

4, In terms of the MCA Circulars and the relevani SEBI Circulars, the Company i3 2ending the
Motica cafling the 50th AGM along with the Annual Report for the Financial Year endad March 31,
2025, inter-agliaindicating the process and manner of remote e-voling are being sent by e-mailon
the e-mad addresses of the Mambers as registerad with Depositories! Regstrar and Shara
Transfer Ageni. Members may alzo note that the Annual Report 2024-25 and the Motios
convening the 50h AGM are also available on the Company's websile

hitps:fwwew. monotypeindialtd infAnnuel-Report, websites of the Sfock Exchange ie. BSE

3}
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Limited al wwwbseindia.com Metropolilan Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSE) al
wiww.mselin and The Calcutia Stock Exchange Limited wwe.cse-india.com and on tha website

of NSDL|.e www evoling nsdl.com

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND
VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON
HISHER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE
THISAGM |5 BEING HELD PURSUANT TO THE MCA CIRCLLARS THROUGH VC OR OAVM,
THE REGUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANMCE OF MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED
WITH. ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS, THE FACILITY FOR
APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM
AMD HEMCE THE PROXY FORM, ATTEMDAMCE SLIP AND ROUTE MAP OF AGM ARE NOT
ANNEXED TOTHISNOTICE.

Institutional | Corporate Shareholders {i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to
sand a scanned copy (POF / JPG Farmal) of ther respactive Board or Goverming Body
Resolution f Authorization ete., authorizing their represantative to attend the AGM through WC /
AWM on their behall and to vole through remote e-Vating, The said Besclution / Authonzation
shall be sanl io Iher Sorutinizer h].r e-mail on its registered e-mail address 1o

The Members can join the S0thAGM in the VCIOAYM mode 15 minutes before and afier the
stheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by fallowing the precedure mentionad in
the Naolice, The facilily of padicipation at the 5HH AGKM through VCIOANM will be made available
far 1000 maembars on first come first served basie. This will not include arge Shareholders
[Shareholdars holding 2% or more shareholding), Promaters, Institutional Invesiors, Directors,
Key Manageria! Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Commitiee, Momination and
Remuneralion Commilies and Stakeholders Relationship Commiiies, Audilors etc. who are
allowead o altend theAGM without restriction on account of firsf come first sarvad basis,

The attendance of the Members aitending the AGM through YCIOAYM will be counted for the
pusrpase of reckoning the guoram under Section 103 of the Companies Act. 2073,

All the membars whoss names are raconded in the Regizgter of Memberz or in the Register of
Beneficial Dwners maintaingd by the deposiiores as on Friday, August 22, 2025, have been
considared for the purpose of sending the Motice of 30thAGKM and the Annual Raport.

Pursuant to the provisions of Secton 108 of ihe Companies Act,- 2013 read with Rule2( of the
Companes [Manag.amant and Adminisirabion) Rules, 2014 [as amendedland Regulation 44 ol
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Reguirements] Regulations2015 (as amended), and the
Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporale Affairs dated April 08, 2020, Aprl 13, 2020 and May
05, 2020 the Company iz providing faciity of remole e-Voting to its Members in respect of tha
business to be transacted al the AGM, For this purpose, the Company has entered inta an
agreement with Mational Securities Depository Limiled (NSDL) for facilitating voting through

[ 1l
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12,

13.

14,

15,

16.

17

glectronic means, as the aulhorized agency. The facility of casling vobes by a2 member using
resmoie e-Voling sysiem as well a5 vanue voling on the date of the S0thAGM will be provided by

NSDL.

In caseofjoint holders, the Memberwhose name appears as the firstholder in the order of names
as par the Register of Members of the Company will be entitted to vole at the AGM through e-

wafing,

Registar of Mambars and Trensfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 16th
Seplember, 2025 Tussday 10 22ndS3eptember, 2025, Monday (both dates inclusive) in terms of
Uhve provisions of Saction 21 of the Companies Acl, 2013 and the applicable clauses of tha SEBI
[Listng Ooligations and Disclosures Requirnmeants Ragulabons) 2015,

Az par Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, secunties of ksted companies
can be fransferred only in dematerialized form with effect from Aprill 1, 2019, except in case of
requast received for iransmission or ransposilion of securities. Inview of this and o eliminate all
rizks sssociated with physical shares and for esee of portfolic managament, membara holding
shares in physical form are requested lo consider converting their holdings fo demalerialized
form. Members can contact the Gnmpang.r ar G'DI'I'IPEII'I:" b Ftﬂglsh—:irarni Tmnslsrrﬁgani his. Miche
Technologies Pvi. Lid.a : i 3

Members are requested to infimale changes, f any, about their name, postal address, email
address, telephone/moblle numbers, PAN, power of attomey registrathon, Bank Mandate details,
gt totheir Depositony Paricipant ("DP") in casa the shares are held inlectronic form and to the
Regisirarin case the shares are hald in physical form, Inprescribed Form No, ISR-1, guating their
folio number and enclosing the self-aitested supporting document. Further, Membears may nota
that SEBI has mandated the submission of PAN by every participant in the securities market.

The Secuwrilies and Exchange Board of India [SEBI} has mandated the submission of Permanani
Account Mumber (PAMN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in
elactronic form are therefore, requastad to submit their PAN o the Depository Participant with
whaom they are maintaining their demat account. Members holding shares i physical form can
submitthair PAN details tathe Registrar and Transfer agent Mis. Niche Technologies Pwt. Lid.

As perthe provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 [the "Act™) the: faciity for making
nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares hald by them. Mambers who
have not yet registersd their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form
Mo, 5H-13. Members are requested to submit the said detailz to their Depositery Participants
("DPs") in case the sharas are hald by them in electronic form and to. Niche Technologias Pt
Ltd; in case the shares are held by them in physical form,

Members are requested to infimale changes, if any, pertaining o their name, postal address,
emall address, lelephone’ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAM), mandales,
neminations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank

=L
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account number, MICR code, IFSC code, elo., totheir DPs in case the shares are held by them in
elactranic form and to the Company's Registrars and Transfer Agents, Link Cameo Corporate
Services Limited for shares held in physical form, with rebevant documents that may be required.

REMOTE E-VOTIMNG: The remcée E-voting period will be available during the following period:

- Day, date and time of commencemeant of remoate e-Voling: Friday, Seplember 19, 2025
at09:00 A M. {1ST)

= Day, dale and Ume of end of remote aVoling Sunday, Seplamber 21, 2025 al
5:00FM. (I5T)

The Company has fived Wednesday, September 15, 2025 as the "Gul-off date” for identifying the
Members who shall ba aligible for participation in the 50th AGM through VCF AV Tacility and
voting eitherthrough remote e-Vaoting or through e-Voting during the AGM. A person whose name
s reconded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Baneficial Dwners maintained by the
depositories as on the Cut-pff date shall be enfiled to attend the AGM and to vwote on the
Resalulions as sal-forth in the Notica, The voling rghis of the Members, in respect of remple -
\ioting or 2-Vating during the AGM, ehall be reckoned in proportion o their share in the paid-up
egquity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, A person who = not a Member ason
the cut-off date should treat Mofice of this AGM for information purposas only.

The Board of Cirectors have appainted Mis. Suprabhat & Co, Practicing Company Secrataries,
Mumbai, as the Scrutinzer for conducting the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner
and has communicated their willingness o be appainted. The Scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the
wotes cast during the AGM and through remote e-voting, will not 1zter bwo working dayvs of
conclusion of the Meating, make a congolidated scrutinizer's raport and submil the same to tha
Chairman. The results daclared along with the consalidaeted scrutinizer's report shall be placed
on the website of the Company hitps-wew. monolyvpeindialtd. in'Serutinize~-Report php.
website of the Slock Exchangesi.e. BSE Limited (B3E)al wwyi bseindia,.com and on the websile

of NS0L at wwnw.evoling. nsdl.com,

[=]
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL
MEETING ARE ASUNDER: -

The remote e-voling period begins on Friday, Seplember 19, 2025 al 09:00 AM. and ends on Sunday,
Seplember 21, 2025 at 0500 P-M. The remote e-voling module shall be disabled by NSDL for wating
thiereafter. The Mambers, whose namas appear in the Register of Membears ! Beneficial Owners ason
the record dale (cul-off date)ie. Seplember 15, 2025 may cast their vole elecironically. The voling right
of shareholders shall be in proportion o their share in the pakl=up equity share capital of the Company
ason tha cul-off date, being Septembar 15, 2025,

How dol vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vode elecharically on NSOL e-\Voling sysfem oonsists of “Two Steps” which are menboned
below:

Step 1: Accessto NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Veting and jolning virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding
securities indemat mode

in terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voling facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vole through their demal
account maintained with Depositories and Depasitory Participants. Sharsholdars are advised to update
their mehile number and email Id in thel demat accounts inorder to access e-Voting Facility.

Login methad for Individual shareholders holding securibes in demat mode s given below:
Type of shareholders Login Method

Indivicual 1. For OTP based login you can click on https:/ieservices, nsdl,com/
Sharehclders SecureWWebisvoting/evotinologin jsp. You will have to antar your 8-
oldiing aacurtion digit DP ID,8-digt Client Id, PAN Mo., Verification code and
in demat mode generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered emisil

id/mobile number and dick on login. After successful
authentication, You will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voling page. Click on company name of -
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and vou will be redirected bo e-
Vating website of NSDL for casling your vote during the remole &-
Vaoting period orjeining vidual meefing & voting during the mesfing

with NSO

2. Existing IDeAS usar can visit the e-Services websile of NSDL Vie,
hitps:Vesenvices.nsd .com either on a Personal Computer or on @
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial
DOwner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS'
secfion, this will prompt you to enter vowr existing User 10 and
Password. After successiul authentication, vou will be able to ses
e-Valing services under Value added services. Clickon ¥ Accass 1o
e-Woting"™ under e-Voling sarvices and you will ba abia o ses &-

=i
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“oting page. page. Chck on company name or &-\Voling service
provider L.e,, NSDL and you will be re-directed to a\oting websile
af NSOL for castmg your vole during tha remote g-\Voting pariod or
jnining virtlual meating & voting during the mesting.

If you are not registered for |DeAS e-Services, oplion o register is
availabla ai hitps./'esarvices.nedl com. Select "Register Online
for |1DeAS Portal" or click al hitps:feservices.nsdl com!

SecureWWeb/ IdeasDirectReg isp

“Wisit the e-\Voting websita of NSDL. Open web browsar bytyping tha
followlng LIRL. hitpsiwww. evoting. nad| comd either on & Persanal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e=Voling system
is launched, cick on tha fcon “Login® which is avalable undar
"ShareholderMember saction. A naw screen will open. You wil
have to enter your User 1D (e, your siaeen digit demat account
numbar hotd with NSDL), Password/OTF and a Verification Coda
as shown on the scraen. After successful authenticabon, you will ba
redirected to MSDL Depository site wherein vou can see e-\Voting
page. Click on company name of e-Voling service provider l.e.
NSDL and you will be redirectad to e-Voling website of NSDL for
casting your vofe during the remote e-Valing persod or joining virtual
meeting & voling during the meeting.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobilefpp
"NSDL Speede’ facility by scanning the 2R code mentioned below
for spambess voling exparience.

N5DL Mcobile App is available on
‘ AppStore B Google Play

[rechivichual
Sharaholders
holding securities
in demat mode
with CDSL

Uzars who have opted for CDSL Easl | Eagies! facility, can login
thraugh their existing user id and password, Dplion will bs mads
availabla to reach s-\Voting page without any further suthentication.
The users 1o login Easi /Easiest are requesiad to visit COSL
wabsite weav cdslindia com and click on login icon & Maw Systam
Myeasi Tab and then user your existng my easi wsername &
pasasword.

e}
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2. After successful login the Easi ! Easiest user will ba abla to see the
e-Noting oplion for eligible companies where the evating i In
progress as per the information provided by company, On clicking
the evoting option, the usaer will be able o see e-oling page of ihe
e-aoting service provider for casting your vote during the remate -
Wating period of joining virual meekng & voling during the meeting.
Addiionally, thers is also finks provided o acoess the system of all
a-%oling Service Providars, so that the user can visit the e-\oting
service providers' website directhy.

3. If the user is not registered for EasiEasiest, oplion 1o mgister is
avalleble at CDSL website www.cdslmdia.com  and click onlogin &
Mew System Myeasi Tab and ihen click on reglstration option,

4, Allernatively, the user can dreclly access e-Voling page by
providing Demat Account Number and PAN Mo, from a e-Voting link
avallable on wyawcdslindia.com  home page. The system will
authenticata the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email
as recorded in the Demat Account. After successiul suthentication,
user will be able to see the e- Voling oplion wherne the evoling is in
progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Vating
Service Providers.

Indmnvidual You can adsa login using the kogin credentials of your demat upon
Sharaholders logging in, you will be able to see e-Vioting option. Click on e-Viating
{halding securitios in option, you will be redirected to NSDLICDSEL Depaository site after
demal mode) logn suceasaful authentication, whereln you can see e-Noling fealure.

Click on company name ore-Yoling service provider e, NSDLand

through their you will be redirected to e-\ioting website of NSDL for casting your
mﬁm vote during the remote &-Voling period or joining virtual mesting &
participants voling during the meating.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders halding securities in d tmode fora chnical issues

lated e loain throuah i La. NSOL DsL.

Logintypea Helpdask details
Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical ssue in login can contact NSDL
halding securities in helpdask by sanding a requast at eyotngiminsd].co.in or call at 022 -
demat mode with NSDL 48867000
Individual Shareholders Members facing any lechnical ssue in login can contact CDSL
halding securties in helpdesk by sending a request al helpdesk.evotingEcdslindia.com
damat mode with CDSL orcontact at toll free no. 1800-21-08911

5}
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtwal meeting for sharcholders other than
Individual shareholders helding securities in demat mode and shareholders helding
securities in physical mode.

L YWisit the e-vioding websie of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
LURL: s e evoling rsdl comy either on a Personal Computer oron 8 mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-vating system is launched, click on the kcon “Login® which is available
under ‘SharehciderMember saction.

3. A new screan Will open. You vwall have o enler your User (D, your Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen,

Alternativaly, ¥ vou are registered for N3DL esenvices e IDEAS, pou can log-in af

Hlpsesendoes nedl, comy with your existing IDEAS login, Once vour log-in to NSDL esenvices
after using your log-in credentlals, olick on e-Voling and you can proceed lo Step 2 1e. Cast your

vide electronically

4, Your User IDdetails are givenbelow

Mannerofholdingsharesi.e. Your UserIDis:
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

1. For Members who hold shares in 8 Character DP 1D followead by
demat account with NSDL 8 Digit ClientID

For example if your DP 1D s IN30D0™ and
Client 1D i 12****" then your user 1D 5
INSOO™* 12444+,

2. ForMembers who hold shares n 16 Digif Benaficiary |D

demat account with CDSL.
For example if yvour Benefidary D s
J@EeeasswreaA it then your user 1D ke

-IEl'i'rn-ﬂirrh'! L]
3.  ForMembers holding shares in EVEN Mumber followed by Folio Number
PhysicalForm, registered with the company

For example if folio number iz 001" and
EVEM Iz 101456 them user ID |s
101456001

5. Fassword detalls for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below;

a)  If you are siready registered for e-Voting, then you can user your exisling password to
logen anad cast your vote

nl
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b) I wou ara using NSDL a-\otng system for the first tima, you will need to retneve the indial
password which was communicated 1o you, Dnce you rétrieve your Initial password', you
reied b enter the initial password and the system will force vou o change your password,

Gl Haow to retrieve your "initial password'?

iy I your smail 1D ks registered in your demat account or with the compary, your finiial
password’ is communicated o you on your email 10, Trace the email sent to you
from NSDL from your mallbox. Open the email and open the altachment |2, & .pdl
fibe. Open the .pdf file. The password (o open the _pdf file & vour 8 digit client 1D for
MSDL account, RSt & digits of client 1D for COSL account o falko number lor shanmas
held inphysical iorm. The . pdffile contains your 'Wser D and your ‘initial password',

(i) I your email 1D & not registersd, pleasa follow steps mentioned below in process
for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. Hyou are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten
your password:

a)  Click on "Forgot User Details/Password™ (Il vou are holding shares In your demal
accountwith NSDL or CDSL) option avsilable on www.evoling nsdi.com.,

b} Physical User Reset Password? (If you are holding shares in physical mode) oplion
available on www.evoling nsdl.com.

cl If wous are still unable to get the password by aforesald two oplions, you can send a request

your name and yourregistered address efc

o} Members can algo usa the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the valas on
thee-Yaling sysiemof S,

[ After antering your passwaord, tick on Agreas o “Terms and Conditiong” by selacling on the check
o a) 8

B, Mows, wou will have o click on "Login®™ button,

Q. After you click on the 'Login” bution, Horme page of e-Woting willopen.

Step2: Castyour vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will ba able to see all the comparies "ENVEN' inwhich you are
halding shares and whose vating cycle and General Meeting is in active status,

gy
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2

T

Select "EVEN" of company for which youwish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voling pericd
and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For poining virtual meating, you need to click
on “WCIOAM link placed under “Join Meeting”.

Mow you are raady for s-Yoling as the Yoting page ocpens.

Cast your vobe by seleciing appropriate options | .e. assent of dissent, venify/imadify the number of
shares Tor which you wish o cast your vole and click on “Submil™ and akso “Confirm” wiven
prompresd.

Lipon corfirmation, the message "“Vole cast successiully” wil be displayed,

Youw can also 1ake the pnntout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the pnnt cption an the
confirmation page

Onece you eonfirm your vole on the resalution, you wil not be allowed o medify yourvele.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Insfitufional shareholders (i.e, other than indiiduals, HUF, MRl etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDEMPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution! Authority lefter etc, with
altested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatorylies) who are authorized fo vole, to
the Scrutinizer by e-mail to suprabhatcsO8@gmail.com with a copy marked 1o
evabingednsdl oo n, Instifutional shareholders {i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.} can
also upboad thelr Board Resclutlon | Power of Attomey { Authority Letler ats. by clicking on
"Upioad Board Rasolution/ Sutharity Letter” displayed under "e-Voling” tab in their login.

It is strongly recommended mot 1o shane your password with any other person and take utmost
care 1o keap your passwond corfidential. Login to the e-voting wabsita will be disabled upon fiva
unsuccessiul attempts o key in the correct pazsword, In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?" or “Physical User Reset Password?" opfion
avaitabde on weww svoling nadl com to resat the passwond.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Azked Questions (FAGE) for Shareholders
and e-voling user manual for  Shareholders avallable al the download section of
vy evaling. nsdl com o cal on,: 022 - 4886 TO00 and 022 - 2490 7000 or gend a requast al

evatingi@nedl.co.in

H
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of @ mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set
out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode pease provide Folio No., Name of shamehaldar,
scanned copy of the share cedificate (front and back), PAN {self-allested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (zeif-aitested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by emall to

manaty peindialtdilgmail.com.

2z In case sharas are held in damat mode, please provide DPID-CLID {16 digit DPID + CLIDvor 16-
dhigit beneficiary 1D, Name, cient master or copy of Consolidated Accoun! statement, PAN (self-
altestodscanned -;npr;n.r -:;r PAN card), MDH#.R tsarfnal_lmwd scanned l:q..'ry urmﬁ Ea-rﬂfl ta

3. Altemativaly shareholder/members may send a request to.evoling@nsd].com for procuring user
& and password for e-voling by providing above menlioned decuments

5]
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS
LUHNDER: -

1.

The procedure for e-Valing on the day of the AGM 5 same as (he instructions mentioned above
for remote e-voting.

Qnly those Membersy shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VGOAWR Tacility
and have nol casted thair vole on the Resolulions through remate e<Voting and an othemyise not
Barred fromm doing 5o, shall ba efigibla o vole throwegh e-Voting systam in the AGKM.

Kembers wiho have voled through Remate e-WVoting will be eligible to attend the AGM, However,
thay will nod be aligibia 1o vole at the A,

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the faciity for
e-Voting onthe day of the AG M shall be the same person mentioned for Bemole ea-voling.

The Chaimnan shall, at the AGM, &t the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to
be held, afow voling, by use of e-voting system for all thoze Members who are present during the
AGM through VCIOAVM but have nol cast their volas by availing the remote avoling facility. The
e-voting medule during the AGM shall be disabled by NSDL for voling 15 minutes after the
conclusion of the Meeting

5]
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR EHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-
YOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1.

10

The procedurs for allending meeting & e-Voling on the day of the AGM is same as the instructicns
menbioned above for e-voting.

Thie fink for VCIOAWM o attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be
disptayed after sutoessiul login as per the instructions mentioned-above for e-voling.

Shareholders who have vated through Remota e-voting will be eligible o -altend the mesting,
Howewer, they will not be eligitle tovote at the AGM.

Sharaholders are ancouraged to join the Meatng through Laptops [/ IPads for beiter expanance.

Furthar shareholders will ba reguired to alow Camera and use Internat with a good speed Lo
avedd any disturbance during the meeling.

Please note that Parlcipants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Lapiop
connecting via Mobide Hotspol may experience Audioideo loss due to Flucluation In thedr
respeciive network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesald glitches,

Shareholders who would like lo express their views/ask guesfions during the meeating may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at leasts days prior to
meating mentioning their name, demat account numbenfolio number, email i, mobile number al
(company emad id), The sharsholders who do nol wish to speak during the AGM but have quaras
may send their gueres in advances days prior to meeting menfioning theirname, demat account
numberfolic number, email id, mobile number atmonolypeindialidi@omail com, These queres
will be replied o by the company sultably by email.

Thiose shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to
axprass thair viewsiask queskons during the mesting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VCOAWM facility and have not
cagted their vole on the Resclulions through remote e-Voting and arm otherwise not barred from
doing 2o, shall be eligible o vote thraugh e-Vaoling system available during the AGKM.

Ifary Voles ara cast by the shareholders through the e-voting avakabla during the AGM and if the
same shareholders have nol participated in the meeting through YCIOAVM facility, then the
votes cast by such sharehoiders may be considarad invalid as the facility of a-voling duning tha
meeting is available only to the sharehobders attending the meating.

By Order of Board
For MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED
ad/-

Place: Mumbai PRERMAMEHTA
Date -21.08.2025 Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

The following explanatony statement pursuant o Secion 1021 ) of the Companles Act 2013, sets out all
mialerial (acts ralating & items af special busness mantioned in the accompanying notice of the AGM.

ftembo. 3

APPOINTMENT M/S SUPRABHAT & CO, COMPANY SECRETARIES, A PEER REVIEWED FIRM
(MEMBERSHIP MO.: A41030 CP NO. 15878 AS A SECRETARIAL AUDNTOR OF THE COMPANY
FORAPERIODOF 5{FIVE) YEARS AND FIXED REMUNERATION

SEBI vide its notification datad December 12, 2024, amended tha SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Dizclozsure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations™). As per the amended
regulations, lisled companias are now required to oblain shareholders' approval, in addition o Board
approval, for the appoiniment of Secrefanal Auditors. The appointed Secretarial Auditor must be a peer-
raviawad practicing Company Secrelary and must nol have any dequalifications as prescribed by tha
SEBI. Additionaly, any association of the individual or firm as the Secretarial Auditor of the listed entity
priorio March 31, 2025, shall notbe considered for the purpose of calculating the tenure under the said
Regulafion.

Pursuani 1o the above raquirement, the Board at its meealting held on 29thMay 2025, considering tha
expenence and expedise and based on the recommendafion of the Audit Committee, has proposead to
the Mambers of the Company the appointmenrt of M's. Suprabhat& Co, Company Secrataries a peer
reviewsad firm, a5 Secretanal Auditor ofthe Company for a pariod of Five (5) consecutive financial years,
L, fromn financial vear 2025-26 to financial year 202930 in terms of Regulation 244 of the SERI Listing
Regulations and SEB| Croular Mo, SEBIHO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2CIRWPS 2024/1 85 dated Dacambar 31,
2024 ("SEBI Cirgular") read wilth provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule Sof the
Companies [(Apgointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

BriefProfile

ACS Suprabhat Chakrabory (Membership Moo ACS 41030, CF No. 15878) is the proprietor of M/fs,
Suprabhat & Coand a Practicing Compary Secretary with over 10 years af exparance in the field.

In addition to filing various stalutory relurns under the Companies Acl, he possesses exlensive
expartize in the incorporation of foreign companies, privaie company, producer company, Limited
Liabikties Company and Section 8 Companies. He also has significant expensnce represanting disnis
in petitions before the Regional Director (RD), the National Company Law Tribunal (NGLT) and the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on arange of company law matiers.

kir. Chakrabarly is well-varsed in tha legal framewarks related to Company Law, SEBI, and mare. He
has practical experience in share fransfer and transmission MCA based filings of annual retums,
particularly for large.

el
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Details os per Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI Listing Regulations are as follows.

Proposed fees payable to
the Secretanal Auditor along
with termns of appointment

The Professional audit and other certification fees plus applicable
taxes and other out-of-packet experses n connechton with the
statutory audit for Financial Year ending March 31, 2026 and for
subsequentyaars) of ther term, such fee as determinead by the Boand,
on recommendation of Audit Committee.

Base of recommendation for
appointmant including the
details in relaton fo and
credentias of the Secretanial
Apudifor

Considarng thair qualifications and extansive expariance, the Board
of dirgctors on recommendalion of the Audit Cammittés recommands
the appoiniment of Mfs. Suprabhaté Co, Praclicing Company
Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a period of
Five (3] consecubive financial years, i.e. from financial yaar 2025-26 10
financial year 2029-20

The appointment i& subjact to sharehalders’ approval at the Annual General Meating. Accordnghy, tha
approval of the Membere iz beng sought for this proposad appaintment.

Mone of the Direclors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their respaclive relatives have any financial or
otherimterest in he proposed resolution,

The Board seeks for the approval of the members for passing of the resolution a5 set out atitem no, 03
ofthis Notice as an Ordinary Resolutbon.

Place; Mumbai
Date :21.08.2025

By Ordar of Board

For MOMNOTYPE INDIA LIMITED

Sd/-

PRERNA MEHTA

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Gl
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ANNEXURE-A
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS RETIRING BY ROTATION AND SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT

AT THE ANNUAL GENERALMEETING

[Pursuant o Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disdosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Clause 1.2.5 of Secratarial Standards-2 on Ganearal Meelings]

Mame of Director

Maresh Manakchand Jain

DN 00281963
Data of Birth 16/08/1064
Age 60 Years
Date of first appointment on the Board 12708/2011
Qualification B. Com

Experience and Experlise

Rich experience in the field of Management
& Administration

No. of Meetings of the Board altendad o

during the year

List of Direclorship of other Boards 4

The Listed entity from which Director has MA
resigned in last three years

List of Membership / Chairmanship of 3
Committees of other Companies

Shareholding in Company 5850000
Terms and Conditions of re-appointment MA

Flace: Mumbai
Date ;:21.08.2025

By Order of Board

For MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED

Sd/-

PRERNA MEHTA

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Gal
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DIRECTORS' REFORT

TO THEMEMBERS,

Your Dirgctons have pleasure in presenting e 50th Annual Report of the Gompany together with 1he
Audiled Financial Statameants far the financial year ended 315t March, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL FERFORMANCE

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024

Tedal Income 6,200.33 1058.67
Total Expenditurs 494342 131.02
Profit! (Loss) before exceplional and

extracrdinary items and tay 1,256.91 Q28 66
Excaptional am .00 1.40
Profil/(Loss) before tax 1.256.91 B2T 26
Less: Deferred Tax 0.55 0.53
Met Profit{Loss | After Tax 1,296.35 826.73

2. OPERATIONS

Comgpany achieved total income of Rs.6,200.33 in the financial yesr 2024-2025 as compare to
Ra.1059.67 Lakhs in the financial year 2023-2024, Tolal expenditure of the company in the FY
2024-2025 = Rs.4,043.42 Lakhs as compare lo Rs.131.02 Lakhs in the FY 2023-2024,
Company achieved profit of Rs.1,256,35 Lokhs n the financial year 2024-2025 as compared to
profit of Rs.826.T3 Lakhs of the financial year 2023-2024.

DIVIDEND:

our directors do notrecommeand any dividend for tha financial year 2024-20235.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Mo amount is proposed to be rensfermed to reserves duning the Financial Year 2024-2025
SHARE CAPITAL:

Duning the fimancial year under review, there were no changes in the issued, subscnbed and
paid-up share capital of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGESAND COMMITMENTS AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:
Mo materal changas or commitments affecling tha financial position of the Company have
occurred bebween the end of the financial year to which financial sistemenis in this report ralate
and the date ofthis report,

[1a}
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7.

10.

.

12

13

14,

DEPOSIT:

The company has nol accepled any public deposits under the provisions of the Companies Acl,
2013 {'Act').

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TOINVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTEGTION FUMD:
The Cormpany don't have any furd for transfer 1o Investor Education and Protection Fund.
SUBSIDIARIESJOINT VENTURE! ASSOCIATE COMPANY:

The Camgany don't have any associate and joinl venture company,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All Relalad Party Transactions thal were entered into dunng the inancial year were on an arm's
length basis, in the ordinary course of business and were in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act and the Listing Regutations. There were no materally significant Refated
Party Transactions made by the Company with Promolers, Directors, Key Managerial Parsonneal
which may have a potential conflict with the inferest of the Company at large, Hence there does
not exists any details to be mentioned in Form ADC-2 which is aftached as " Annexure -A",

All Related Party Transaclions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval. The
Company has adopted a Related Party Transactions Policy, The policy as approved by the board
i uploaded on the Company's wabsite at httpf'monolypeindalld, in'RekEted-Party-Transsdion,

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI:

The compary has complied wilh the requirements prescribad under the Secretaral Standards on
Meetingsof the Board of Directors (55-1) and General Meetings ($35-2),

CHAMNGE IMN THE MATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:
Therewas no change inthe nature of business of the company during the year.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE ANDINVESTMENTS:

Tha company has nol given any loans or guarantees of made any investmants in contravention
af the provisions of the Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, The delails of the leans and
guaraniess given and investmants made by the Company are provided in the notes to tha
financial staterments,

STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY:

The Company |5 driven by passionate pramoters from the industry engaged in irading inshares,
financial services and Investment aclivilies with & view o strenglhen iLs exsting platforms and
building new ones. The Company continues to focus and grow by nurturing in our business of
trading in shares and other financial services,

Anl
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21.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURMN:

In accordance with the requirements of Section 92 (3) read with Section 134(3¥a) of the
Companies Acl, 201 3the Annual Return as on J1stiMarch, 2025 i3 available on the Company’s

wabsite hitp/imonotypeindialid. Lal-

CORPORATE 3OCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The provisions of section 135 of the Companias Acl, 201 3 are not appicabls 1o he company.
CORPORATE GOVERMANCE:

Areport on Corporate Governance together with a carificate of its compliance from a Practising
Company Secretary, forms part of this repoi.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS REPORT:

Management Dscussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under
SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms part of this

report, Which is atfached as "Annexure-B"
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Board of Directors have adopted a nsk management policy for the Comparny which provides
for Mentification, assessment and control of risks which in the cpinien of the Board may pose
significant loss or threat to the Company. The Management identifies and controls risks through a
defined framework interms of the aforesaid palicy, The Risk Management Policy is posted on the
wabsite of the Company i.e. hipmonotypeindialtid.in/Policies php,

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY /VIGIL MECHANISM:

There is a Whistle Blower Policy In 'the Company and no parsonnal have baen denied access 1o
the Chairman of the Audit Committes. The policy provides for adequaie safeguards against
wictimization of pergons who use vigil mechanism. The Whiste Blower Policy iz posted on the

wabeite of the Company hlip{monatypaindiald nPolcies php

POLICY FOR DETERMINATION OF MATERIALITY FOR DISCLOSURE OF EVENTS OR
INFORMATION:

The Company has framed a Pelicy for delermination of Mateniality far disclosure of avents or
Information under SEBI {Lating Obligations and Disclosura Requirementa} Regulations, 2015 In
accordance with the provisions of Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosurs
Requirements) Regulalions, 2015, The same has been hosted on the website of the Company
and is accessibée at the web i.a. http:'monotypeindiattd. indPalicies php.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Internal financtal controls of the Company are commensurate with its size, scale and
el
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24,

25,

complexity of operations. The company has policies and procedures which inter alia ensure
integrity in conducting business, timely preparation of rmeliable information, accuracy and
completeness in maintaining acscourting records and prevention and detection of frauds and
erors, The Audit Commiltee actively reviews the adequacy andeffectiveness of the intermal
financial conbrod systems and suggests improvemants § any to strengihen the same.

ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUMNAL .

Mo ordars passed by any Regulators or Court or Tribunal during the inancial yaar.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Imcomaliancaof saction 13405) of the A, the directors stale that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts the applicable accounting standards have been
fallowed along with praper explanation relating o material deparures.

they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments ard estimales thal are reasonable and prudent 20 as 1o give a brue and fair view
ofthe state of affairs of the company atthe end of the financial year 2024-2025,

they have faken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequale accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for saleguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other iregularities.
they have preparad the annual accounts on a going concarn basis,

they have laid down internal financial controls 1o be followed by the company and thal such
internal financial cantrols are adeguate and are operaling effactivaiy.

they hawve devised proper systems to ensure compkance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such syslams are adequate and are oparating effectivaly.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

1.

The following officers of the Company have been designated as the Whole-tims Kay
Managerial Persannal in sccordance with Saction 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companias (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014

a. k. Maresh Jain - Whaolatimea Director

b.  Mr. Maresh Jain- Chief Financal Officer

Appointment'Reappeintment:
Change in Directorate;

K. Maresh Jain (CHN: 00281863) retire by rotation at tha 43th Annuesl General Meesting.

sl
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Humberof meetings of Board of Directors;

Thiz information hkas been fumished under Report on Corperate Govemance which forms
part ofthis report

Gommittees of Board:

This information has been fumished under Report on Corporate Govemance which forms
part afihis repart

Meeting of Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors of the Company at their meeting hald on 24th March, 2025
reviewed the periormance of non- independent direciors and the Board as 8 whole
including the Chairman of the Company by taking into consideration views expressed by
the execulive directors and non-ecaculive diraclors &l varous level pedaining o the
quality, quantity and timekness of low of information betweenthe company, management
and the board have expressed their satisfaction.

Declaration from Independent Directors:

The independani directors have submitted a dedaration of independence, sialing thal
fhey meet the criferia of independence provided under saction 149(6) of the Adl, as
amended, and reguiation 16 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Board had taken on record the declaration and confirmation submittad by the
independent directors regarding meeting the prescribed criteria of independence, after
underaking dee assessment of the veradty of the same in terms of the reguirements of
regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Requlations.

Paolicy an Directors” Appointmant and Remuneration:

The Board has on the recommendation of the Momination and Remuneration Committes,
framed a policy for the selection and appoiniment of Directors, Senicor Management and
thedgr remuneration. The Remuneration Policy and the detals pertaining 1o the
ramuneration paid during the year are furnishad in the Comporate Goavemnance Reporl
which forme part of thiz report. The Policy iz posted on the website of the Company i.e.
hitps:hwws monolypeindialtd. in/Policies. php.

Performance Evaluation:

Pursuant I the provisions of the Companles Acl, 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations and
Circulars and Guidance Notes issued by SEBI in this regard, the Board has carried outan
anrual perfermance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as wall
a5 the evaluation of the warking of its Audil, Nomination and Remuneration and other
Commitlees,

=1
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INTERMNAL AUDITOR:

Board appointed Mis Abhishek R Jain & Co., Chartered Accountant (FRN:1483930WN),
Mumbai as an internal Auditor of the Company Tor the financial year 2024-2025.

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND HIS REPORT:

Wiz, B M Gattani & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Finm Registration Number 113538%W) were
appainted as Statutory Auditors of the Company Tor & term ool five years Fom he condusion of
45thAannual General Meeting until the conclusion of S1stannual General Mesting of the
Company. As per the provisions of Section 139 of the Act, they have confirmed that they are not
disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company.

The Audit Beport of M's, B M Gattani & Co. on the Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year 2024-25 forms part of this Annual Beporl. The report does nol contain any
qualification, resarvation, adversa remark or disclaimer.

SECRETARIALAUDITOR AND HIS REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Act, the Board has appeinted Mr. Suprabhat
Chakraborty, pradising company secretary (C.P. No. 15878), to undertake secretarial audit of
tha Company.

A report from the secretarial auditor in the prescribed Form MR-3 Is annexed as
“Annexure-C* tothis Report. The report contains the following cbservation:

1 Independent directors of the Company have not clear online seff-assessment proficiency
te=t as per the Companies (Appointment and Cualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,

COSTAUDITOR AND COST AUDIT REPORT:
Appaintmant of CastAuditor is mol applicable ta your Company.
SEXUAL HARASSMEMNT:

The Company has adopled a policy in line with the requirements of Pravention of Sexual
Harzssment of Women at the Waorkplace, Mo complaint was received during the year under the
snid podicy.

PARTICULAROF EMPLOYEES:

Considering the provisions of Section 19712} of the Act read with the relevant rules and having
referrad to provisions of the First Proviso 1o Seclion 136(1) of the Act, the Annual Report is being
sant to the members of the Company, excluding details of pariculars of employvees and related
disclosures, The saidinformation’ detalls are avallable for inspection at the Registered Office of
the Company during working bours, on any working day. Any member interested in cbtaining this
information may write to the Company Secratary and this mformation wouwld be provided on
request,

el
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35.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO:

The particulars relaling to conservation of energy, lechrology absomplion, foreign exchange
aarnings and culgo, as prescribed under Section 134 {3) (m)ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule B of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 arm given in “Annexune- 07 annexed hareto

and forms part of this Report,
HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT:

The company considers satety, envircnmant and health as the management responsibility and
therefore being constantly aware of its obligation towards maintaining and Improving the
anvironmant scross vanows sphares of it business acbvities.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS IMPACTING GODING
CONCERN STATUSANDCOMPANY'S STATUS IN FUTURE:

Cwring year no significant and material orders were passed by any regulator of court of tribunal
impacting the going concern staius and Company's operalions in fulure.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the confinued co-operation and supporl
extended to the company by the bankers, media professionsls, customers and reguiatory
authorties, Your Directors also place on record sincere appreciation of the continued hard work
putin by employess at all levels.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sdi- Sdi-

kMarezh Jain Suryakant Kadakana

Whalatima Director & CFO Diractor
DM : D02913E53 DIN: 02272617

Date: 21/08/2025
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure - A
FORM NO. ADC-2

Form fer disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section [1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:

(Pursuant o clause (h) of sub-section (3) of secton 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

and Rula B{2} of the Companies (Accounts] Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangemants ar transactions not al am's length basis - NLGAL

(&)
(b)
(ch
(d)
(&)

i1

(a)
ir)

Mame{s)of the related parly and nature of relationship;

Mature of contracislarrangement sftransactions;

Duration of the contracts/armngemeantstransachons;

Salkent terms of the contracts or arangemenis or fransactions incduding the value, IFany;
Juetfication for entaring into such contracts or arrangemesnis or transactions datels) of
approval by the Board,

date(s) of approval by the Board,

Amount paid as edvancas, ifany;

Date on whichthe special resolution was passed in general meeting as reguired under first
proviso o Saction 168,

2. Datails of matarial conlracts or arrangameant or ransactions al arm's length basis - NLA.

() blame{s ) of the related party and nature of relationship;
iB]  Malure of contracis/arrangementsftransactions;
ic}  Dwrationof the confractsfarrmngemeants'tran saclions;
idl  Salentterms of the contracts or amangemenis of ransacticnsinduding the value T any,
(e] Datefs)of approval by the Board, iTany;
(fl  Amount paid as sdvances, ifany.
For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-
Maresh Jain Suryakant Kadakane
Wholetime Director & CFO Director
DIN: 00291963 DiMN: 02272617
Date: 21/08/2025
Place: Mumbai
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Annexsure — B
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS REPORT

Your Directors are pleased to present the Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the
financial year ended 318t March, 2025 as stipulated under Regulation 34 {2) {e) read with
Schedule VB ol SEBI LODR) Regulations, 2015,

The managemant of the Company = presenting herain tha overview, opportunities and threats,
inftiatives by the Company and overall strategy of the Company and its outlook for the future. This
outlook is based on management's own assessment and it may vary due o fulure economic and
other future developments in the country.

INDUSTRY STRUCTUREAND DEVELOPMENTS:

The Company is engaged in frading in shares, financial services and Investment activities where
the outiook of the business seems to be encouraging over and above.

OVERALL REVIEW:

Az a Financial and Investment Company, your company is engaged in providing finance and to
make investmeant in any form whatsoever including investmeant in shares, siocks, bonds or other
securilias and 1o carry on the business of financing, industnal or other enterprises and o act as
financial advisors in companies, corporations, enterprises, business organizations or any other
association of parsons, The Company is exposed (o all risks & threat which financial market faces.
Inlinancial services business, effective risk management has become very crucial. Your Company
is exposed fo credit risk and many other risks. All these nsks are continuously analyzed and
reviewed at varous levels of management through an effective information system.

Company achieved total ncome of R$.6,200.33 in the financial year 2024-2025 as comparg 1o
Rs.1059.67 Lakhs in the financlal year 2023-2024, Total expenditure of the company in the FY
2024-2025 is Bs.4,943.42 Lakhs as compare to Rs.131.02 Lakhs in the FY 2023-2024. Company
achieved profit of Rs.1,256.35 Lakhs in the financial year 2024-2025 as compared lo profit of
Rs.926.73 Lakhs of tha financial yvear 2023-2024.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:
OPPORTUNITIES:

Markat Potential-There is lot of scope for improvement, alteration or changing or creating new
investments, Scope for diversificalion into other products iz very high.

* Exposure to exporand domestic markeds.

L Exporter-friendly government policies.

=
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- Growing international and domestic markets.
. Growing Demand.

THREATS:
- Increasa in competition
- Customer & Geographical concentration,

OUTLOOK:

Monotype India Limited remains confident of the long term growth prospects & opportunities
ahead of itinits business and chosan customer sagmeanis.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUALCY:

The Company has an adequate |ntermal Control System commensurate with its size and
operations. Management has overall responsibility for the Company's Infernal Control Systemto
safeguard the assets and to ensura relighility of financial records.

Audii Committes reviews all financial statements and enswes adeguacy of Internal control
systems.

DISCUSSIONS ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIOMAL
PERFORMANCE:

Company achieved otal income of Rs. 6,200.33 in the financial year 2024-2025 as compare 1o
Rs. 1059.67 Lakhs in the financal year 2023-2024. Tolal expanditure of the company in the FY
2024-2025is Rs. 4,943.42 Lakhs as compare to Rs. 131.02 Lakhs inthe FY 2023-2024, Company
achieved profit of Rs. 1,256.35 Lakhs in the financial year 2024-2025 as compared to profit of
Rs. 026.73 Lakhs of the financial year 2023-2024.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATION FRONT,
INCLUDINGNUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED:

The employeeas ane satisfied and having good relationzhip with the Managemeni.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:
Statamanis in this Management Discussion and Analysis Repont describing the Company's

objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be forward looking” within the meaning of
applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from those axpressed aorimplied.

=1
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Annexure-C
FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINAMCIAL YEAR EMDED 315T MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant fo section 204(7) of the Companias Adct, 2013 and Rule No @ of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Manageral Personnel) Rules, 2074]

Ta,

The Membars,

Mis Monotype India Ltd

CIN: LY2Z000MH19T4PLC2BTS52
2, First Floor, Rahlmicola House,
7 Homiji Street,

REBIHomimal Circle,

MUMBA| 400001,

I hawve conducted the secretanal awdit of the compliance of applicable siatalory provisions and fha
adherence o good corporate practices by Mfs Monotype Indla Limited (hereinafter called ihe
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in 8 manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts'slalutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and
other records mamtained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 1S
officers, agants and authorized represeniatives during the condwct of secratarial audit, | heraby repor
that in my opinicn, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year endad on 3151
Marcn, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
praper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the axtent, in the manner and subjact
ki the raparting madea hareinafftar,

| have examined the books, papers, minute bocks, forms and returns filed and other records malntained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 315t March 2028, according to the pravisions of:

a. The Companies Act, 201 3 (the Actyand the rnules made there under;

b.  TheSecurties Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ( SCRA')and tha rules made there under;

= The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byedaws framed there under;

d. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1998 and the rules and regulations made there under tothe
extent of Foreign Direct Invesiment. Overseas Direct Investmenl and External Commercial

Bormawings;

B, The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securiiies and Exchange Board
of IndiiaAct, 1992 (SEB| Act')

i. The Securties and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acguisiion of Shares and
Takeovers)Regulations, 2011,

Mal
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ii The Securifies and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regutations,
2015

i The Securties and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital armd Disclosure
Raguiremeants) Regulations, 2009; (Mot applicable to the Company during the Audid
Pariod)

¥, The Securtes and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefils)
Ragulation, 2014, (N appiicaixe to the Company during theAudsl Paciod})

W The Securities and Exchange Board of Indla {Issue and Listing of Debi Securities)
Regulations, 2008, (Nat applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

¥i.  The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Registrars o an Issue and Share Transfer
Agenis) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

¥ii. The Securifies and Exchange Board of India [(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2008, (Mot applicable to the Company during the Audil Period) and;

viil,  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1995;
(Mot applicable fo the Company during theAudit Pericd)

I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and
mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations to the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1. The Securities and Exchanga Board of India (Listng Obligaton and Disclosure Regurement)
Regulation, 2015 (the "LODR");

2z Secretarial Standard issued by The Instiiute of Company Saecratases of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provizions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, ate. mentionedabeveSubjecitothefollowingDbsarvation:

1. indepandent directors of the Company have not clear online seif-szzasemeart proficiency fest as
parthe Companites (Appointment and Quwalification of Divectors) Ruwies, 2014,

I furthar report that

- The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Lirectors, Non-Exsculive Directors and Independent Direciors.

. Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting membera’ views are caplured and
recarded as part of the minutes.

=l
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Hurtherrepord that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance wilh applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines,

I furthier report that there is scope o improve the systems and processeas in the company and operations

of the company fo monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, mles, regulations and
guidelines.

Suprabhat Chakraborty

Company Secretary in Practice

Sdi-

ACS No.241030

C.P Mo.:1587H

UDIN: AR41030G0010T2027

Peer Review Certificate no.: 2284/2022

Date: 21/08/ 2025
Place: Kolkata
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This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
an integral part of this report.

Ta,

Annexura A"

The Members,
Mis Monotype India Ltd

CIN: LT2800MH1974PLCZATES2
2 First Floer, Rahimtoola Housa,
7 Homiji Street,

REBIHomimal Circle,
MUMBAI - 400001

My Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of Secretanial record is the responsibiity of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opiniononthese secretarial records based onouraudi,

| have followed the audil praciicas and process as wers appropriate to obtain reasonable
assuranca sbout the corraciness of the contants of the Secrelarial records. The verfication was
done on tes! basis (o ensure that correct facts are refiected in Secretarial records. | befieve that
the process and practices, | foliowed provide a reasonable basis for ouropinian,

Ihave nol verfied the correciness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accountsof the Company.

Wheraver required, | have cbtained the Management representation about the Compliance of
lawes, niles and regudations and happening of events etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable [aws, rules, regulations,
sfandards i3 the responsibility of management. My examination was limitedta the verification of
procedure ontestbasgis

The Secreiarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as io the future viabdity of theCompany nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conductedthe affairs of (he
Company.
Suprabhat Chakraborty.
Company Secretary In Practice
Sd/-
ACS No.:41030
C.P Mo.: 15878
UDIN: AQ41030G001072027
Peer Review Certificate no.: 2284/2022

Date: 21/08/2025
Place: Kolkata
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Annexure — D
Parmiculars undes sub-sacthon {3) (m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companias (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ane glven as unded:

Conservation of Energy:-

(i)

the steps laken or Impact on
consenvation of energy;

Company ensures that the operations are
conducted in the manner whersby optimum
uhlisation and maximum possible savings of
energy is achieved

(M)

the steps izken by the company for
ufilizng alemate sources of energy;

No allermate source has bean adopled

(i}

the ecapial investment
congarvation equipments;

an  energy

No spacific invastment has been mada n
reductionin energy consumption

Technology Absorption:-

(i)

the afforts made towards technology
absorption;

Mo oulside technology is used by the
Company

(i} | the benefits derived like product | NotApplicable
improvemant, cost reduction, product
development orimport subestitution;
()| in case of imported technology |{a) thedetallsof iechnalogy imported; Ml
(importad during the last three vears | (b} thevearofimport: MNA
reckoned from the beginning of the | {c) whether fthe technology been fully
financial year); absorbed: NA
{d) if npot fully absorbed, areas where
absorpbion has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof; and - WA
(iv) | the expanditure incurred on Research | Notapplicable

and Deveiopment,

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:-

As regards, the functional cumency of the Company i3 Indian Rupee. Currency rizk (s not
material, as the Company doas not have any exposure on loreign currency, please refer Note
31{a)im Motes 1o Financial Statements as at March 31,2025,

|
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CERTIFICATE OF NON DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant o Regulation 34{3)and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)i} of Securities and Exchange Board
ofindia [Listing Obligations and Discloswre Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Te,

Tha Members,

Mis Monotype India Lid

CIN;: LT2900MH19T4PLCZBTS52
Z,First Floor, Rahimioola House,
7 Homiji Street,

RBIHomimal Circle,
MUMBAI-400001.

I have examinead the following documents:

Declarabon of non-disgualification as required under section 164 of the companies Act 2013,
Dhisclosure of concem of interest as required under section 184 of the Acl, {hameinafer refermed (o as
refevani documents) as received from the Directors of Momolype India Ltd bearing CIN-
LYZ900MH187APLCZATS52, having ils registerad offica at 2, First Floor, Rahimtoala House, 7 Homjl
Street, REl Homimal Gircle, MUMEBAI - 4000041 (herein after referred to a5 'the Gompany'), and the
ratavani registers, records, forms, and ratums maintainad by the Company and made available to me
by the Company for the purpose of issuing this cerificate in accordance with regulation 34(3) read with
schedule YV Parl © Clause 10{) of the Securties and Exchange Board of India [Liksting Obligations and
Diieclosura requirements) Regulations. 2015,

Based on the examination as aforesaid, and such olher verification camled oul by us as desmad
necessary and adequaie (including Director Identification Mumber (DIN) status of the respective
directors ai the portal www.mca.gov.in in our opinion and best of our belief, information and knowiedge
and according tothe explanations provided by the Company its officers and authorised representativas
and written representation made by the respective directors, we hereby certify that none of the Directors
on the bosrd of the Company as staled balow for the financial yvaar anding on 315t March 2025 have
bean debarred or disgualified from being appointed or continuing a2 the direcior of the Company by tha
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such olher slatulory
authority.

8l. | Name of Director DIN Date of Date of

Nea. appointment | Cessation
1 NARESH MANARKCHAND JAIN (0281963 26.05.2023 25.05.2028
2 SURYAKANT KADAKANE MARLUTI 2272617 26.05.2023 25.05.2028
4] RAJENDRA SIDDHOJ REDEKAR 02713873 06082023 07.08.2028
4 PREET! JAYESH DOSH| 07741542 26.05.2023 25.05.2028

H
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“““ Indapendent diraclors of the Company have rol clear online sell-assessment proficiency lesl as
per the Companies (Appointment and Cualification of Directors ) Rulas, 2014,

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointmert! confinuity as the director of the boand is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. Our responsibdity is to express an apinichbased on our verification
and reprasentation made by tha respective directors.

This Cerificate is neflher an assurance as bo the fulure viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Comparny.

Suprabhat Chakraborty.

Company Secretary in Practice

Scf=

ACS No.:41030

C.P Mo.: 15878

UDIN: ADST030G0010T2038

Pear Review Certificate no.: 2284/2022

Date: 21/08/2025
Place: Kolkata
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Fursuani o SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulabons, 2015, given below |3
& repart on the Corporate Govermnance in the Company':

1.

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERMNANCE:

The Board and lop management of tha company are fully exercizes fairness, fransparency,
accountability, commitment to ensure thet oparations of the company are camed out in ethical
manner thereby enhancing stakeholders value, The Company further ensures that itwill maintain
the same baditions and commitment in fulure, Your company is in compliance with the
requirerments stipulated under SEBI [Listing Cohligabons and Disclosure Reduirements)
Regulations, with regard to Corporate Governance,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Your company is having an appropriate blend of independent and non-independent diractors to
raintain the independence of the Board and 1o separate the Board funclions of governance and
managemaert.

a) Composition:

In compliance with the provigions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Gompany has an
optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors with woman independent
directar. The company has an Executive Chalrman, According to provisions of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, if the chairman is executive promotar, at least one half of the board of
the company should censistof independent direciors.

Ag on 31st March 2025, the Board of the Company consisted of 4 {four) directors, of whom
one i executive, three are noneexecutive independent director (incuding one-woman
independent diracior), The board does not have any nomines director, The Company i in
compliance with the SEBI Listing Requlations peraining to composifion of boand of directors,

by No. of Meeting of Board and Attendance Recard:

During financial year 2024-2025, the Board mel § {Six) imes on 28.05_2024, O7.08.2024,
28.08.2024, 13.11.2024, 22.01.2025 and 24.03.2025 The names and caiegones of
Directors on the Board, their altendance at the Board Meelings held during the vear and
the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships | Memberships held by themn
in other companies are given herein below, Other Directorships do not include
directarships in Private Limited Companies, Secthon B Companies and Companias
incorporated outzide India. Chaimanships [ Memberships of Board Committees include
enly Audit Committes and Stakaholders Relationship Commities.

[zl

138]



MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED 50" Annual General Meeting 2025

Name of | Category DIN | Mo.of other| Attend-  Afiended | Committes positions
Directors | Director- | anceat gt held in cther
 shipis) held| Board | -~ |Companies including
xCiuding | Meetings Monotype India
H-mgw (out Limited
| Limited# | o' Member | Chairman
Mr. Maresh Jain Executive Q02971363 Fy & Yes 3 1
Direcior
‘Whaole Time
| Director & CFO :
W, Suryakent | Non-Executive | 02272517 | 3 E Yes 11 B
Kadakane incependant
_Drecir | | | |
Wrs. Praati Doshi | Nom-Executive | 07741542 | z E Yes 5 i
independent
Diractor :
b, Fagenira Mon-Execultve | 02713973 1 -+ Yes 4 i
Redekar indapendani
Dreclor

# Excluding Private Company, Forsign Companies, Section 8 Companies and Altermate
Drectorships.
## Includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committes.

Directorships held by Directors in the aforementioned table do not include Private Limited
Companies, Foreign Companies, Section 8 Companies, Altemate Directorships and One
Person Companias.

Memberships / Chairmanships of only the Audit Committee and the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee of the public limited companies except 52 weeks Entertainment
Limited whether lisled ar nol, have been considered. All other companies including private
limited companias, foraign companies and companies undar Saction 8 of tha Companias Act,
2013 have been excluded.

MNone of the Direclors are related to each other.

c) Information supplied to the Board
The Board is presented with relevant information on vanous matters related to the
working of the Company, espacially thosa that require deliberation at the highast level.

In addition o tems required o be placed before the board for ks noling and/or approval
information is provided on various significant items also,

a7l
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)

d)

fl

Inter-se relationships among Directors
There are no inter-se refationships amang the directors,
Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors

None of the Non Executive & Independent Diractors hold any shares in the Company.
Further, the Company has not issued any convertible instrumeants hence disclosure in
this respectis not applicable.

Web link where details of familiarisation programmes imparted to Independent
Directors

The Company has conducied familiarisation programmes for the Independent Directors
with regards to their role, rights and responsibilities as Independent Directors. The
Independent Directors are also regularly briefed on the nature of the Company's
business model. The familiarisation programs have been uploaded on the wehbsite of the
Company at hitps:ffwww. monotypaindialtd. in/Others-Disclosures. php.

Confirmation that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfils the
conditions specified in these regulations and are independent of the management

BOARD COMMITTEES:

In comphance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2013 and SEB! (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requiraments) Regulations, 2015, the Company has constituted
3 (three) Committees i.e. () Audit Committee (i) Stakeholders Relationship Committes (ili)
Momination & Remuneration Committee. The Board determines the constitution, roles and
terms of reference of the aforesaid commitizes,

AUDITCOMMITTEE:

{n

Terms of reference of Audit Committee

The terms of reference of Audit Committes inter-alia covers all the matters specified
under Section 177 of the Companies.Act, 2013 and also all the matters listed under Part
C of Schedule Il of SEBI (Lsting Obligations and Disclosure Regquirements)
Fequlations. The Audit Committea reviews all the information that is reqguired to be
mandatorily reviewead by it under the corporate governanca.

[Mal
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(i}

Composition, Meeting and Attendance of Directors at Committee Meeting

The Audit Committes of the company comprises of 3 (Three) Directors and 6({5ix)
meetings of the said committee were held on 28.05.2024, 07.05.2024, 25.08.2024,
13.11.2024, 22.01.2025 and 24.03.2025during the year. The details peraining 1o the
rmembers of committee and attendance of members at meating is furnishad below:

Mame of Directors Designation Ma. of Meatings Mo. of Meetings
Heid Attended

Mr, Suryakant Kadakane Chairman L1 B

Mr. Rajendra Redekar Member i &

Mrs. Prasti Doshi hdamiber i 3]

The intervening period between two Audit Committee Meotings s well within the maximum time
gap of one hundred and twenty days as prescribed under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The
necassary quorum was prasant for all the meotings.

HOMINATION AMD REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

n

(i)

Terms of reference of Nomination and Remunaration Committea

The Momination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted in compliance with Section
178 of Companies Act, 2012 and Reguiation 19 af the SEBI Listing Regulations. The tarms of
reference of nomination and remumeration committee are in conformity with the powers as
shpulated in Regulation 19 read with Scheduls Il Part D of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
and Section 178 of the Companies &ct, 2013 and includes all such matters as may ba directed by
the board from timee to time,

Composition, Meeting and Attendance of Directors at Committee Meeting

Tha Nominaton and Remunerabion Committes of the Company comprises of 3{Threa)
Diractors of all whom are Man- Executive Independent Directors. During theyear Two (2]
meetings of the sald commilles were held on 07082024 and 24032025 The details
peraining to the members of committee and attendance record of members at meeting is
fumished below:

Mame of Directors

Designation

Mo. of Meetings
Held

No. of Mestings
Attended

Mr. Suryakani Kadakane

Chairman

2

2

Mr. Rajendra Radekar

hamber

2

2

Mra. Praati Croshi

tdembear

2

2

[Mnl
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Remuneration pelicy for Executive and Mon Executive and Independent Directors are as
follows:

Executive Directors:

The ramunaration if payable to execubive directors shall be paid in consultation with the Nomination &
FRemuneration Committee who decides the remunerastion stracture for Executive Directors by
considening the inancial pesition of the company, gualification, expedencea of the directons, rend in the
industry, pasi performance, past remuneration and limits prescribed for remunaraton of Executiva
Directors Le., 10 % of nel profit of the company calculated in the manner prescribed wunder the
Companies Act, 2013 and subject lo necessary approvals the reurder. The Nomination &
Ramuneration Committes ensurss that remuraration, if any, payvabla to axeculive diractors does nol
excesds the prescribed limits.

Dwring the financial vearunder review no remuneration or payment were padd io the Directors,

Non Executive and Indapandent Directora:

The Non-Executive and Independant Direcltors of the Company may ba paid remuneration penodically
or may be paid commession within the averall kmit of 1% of the Nel Prafit of the Company calculated in
the manner prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and subjec! to necessary approvals thereunder,
In addiion io commission if any, Mon-Execulive Directors are paid sitling fees and actual
reimbursement of expenses incurred for attending each meeting of the Board and Committees.

During the financial year under review no remuneration of paymant wera paid to tha Dirsciors,

Remuneration paid to the Directors for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 is as follows:

&r Mame of Directors Sitting Fees Balaryand |Commission No.of e
Ho. Perquisites Shares Held

1 | Mr. Naresh Jain Ml il Nil 5850000

£ M. Suryakant Fadakane 12000 il il Plil

3 hir=. Preati Doshi 8000 il il il

4 Mr. Rajendra Redakar 12000 BJil Mil il

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
1) Terms of Reference ofthe Committes

The terms of reference of stakeholders relationship commitiee are in conformity with the powers
as stipulated in Regulation 20 read with Schedule || Part D of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and
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Sechion 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and includes all such matters as may be dirested by {he
board from time toime.

) Composition, Meeting and Attendance of Directors at Committee Meeting

The Stakeholders Relationship Committes of the Company compnses of 3 {Thraeg) Directars,
Dwring the yvear SiFive) meetings of the sald committes were held on 27.05.2024, 07.08.2024,
28.08.2024, 13.11.2024 and 22.01.2025, The details peraining te the members of commities
and attendance record of members at meeting is fomished below

Hame of Direciors Designation No.of Meetings | No.of Meetings
Held Attended

Mr. Suryakant kaadakans Chairman 4 d

Mr. Rajendra Redakar Membar % 4

Mrs. Presati Coshi Member 4 4

Name and Designation of Compliance Officer

Ms. Prema Mehta acts as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company as on
J1stMarch, 2023,

Status of Investors Complaints
There are no pending investors complaints a3 on 3131 March, 2025,

1. DISCLOSURES

(i

(i)

(i)

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large

During the year under review, besides the transactions reporied elsewhere in the Annual
Report, there were no materially signifiicant transactions or amangements entered into
batwaan the Company and the promoters, direclors and managamaent that may have
potantial conflict with the interast of the Company at large.

Disclosures on Compliance of Law

There hawve been no instances of non-compliance on eny matter with the rules and
regulations prescribed by the Stock Exchanges, Securilles and Exchange Board of India
o any other statutory auliority refaling 1o the capital markal during the last thres years,

Vigll Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

Theara 1= a Whistie Blower Palicy in the Campany and no parsannal have bean danied
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committes, The policy provides for adegquate
salequards against vicimézation of persons who use vigil machanism. The Whistle Blower
Palicy is posted on the website of the Company hitp:(/monotypeindialtd. in'Policies. php.
[41}
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(iv)

(v}

(vi)

(vil)

(i)

Coda for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

The Company has slsoadopled a code of conduct for prevention of inakder frading, All the
Directors, senior management empioyees and other employvees who have access (o the
unpublished price sensitive information of the Company are governed by this code.
During the year under Repord, there has been due compliance with the said code of
conduct for pravention of insider trading. The said code is posted on the website of the

Company at hitp monotvpeindiatd.in/Poscies oho,

Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adopticn of discretionary
requirements

All mandatory requirements have been complied with and the company has not adopled
any discretionany requirements.

Palicy for determining 'material’ subsidiaries

The Company has adopted Policy for determining 'matedal’ subsidianes and the same |5
postad on tha Company™s wabsite al iitpmonoly peindiaitd By Policees. php,

Codeof Conduct

The Board has kaid down a code of conduct for board members and senior managemeani
personnel of the Compary. The code incorporates the duties of independent directors as
laid doswn in the Companies &ct, 2013, The said code of condud! is posted on Company's
website  hitpy/monotypeindialid.in'Policies.php. The Board members and senior
managamant parsonnal have affirmed complance with the said code of conduct. A
declzration in this ragard signed by the Whaole Time Director s gven st the and of the
Corparate Govemance Report.

Familiarisation program for Indepeandent Directors

The Company has conducted familiarisation programmes for the independent Directors
with regards o their rale, rights and responsibilibes as Independert Directors. Tha
Independent Directors are also regularly briefed on the natuere of the Company's business
modal. The familarisalion programs have been uploaded on the wabsite af the Company

af A indi inPolic
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2.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The lpcation, date and tme of the Annual GeneralfExtra Ordinary General Meestings held during
last 3 years along with Special Resolutions) passed atthese meelings are as under;

Financial Date and Yenue Special Resolution
Year Ended Time Passed
31=t March, hald on Video Conferencing
2024 28th (*VC*) Other Audio -
September, Visual Means
2028 ("DAVM") A
3
01:30 p.m.
31st March, | held on 07th Video Conferencing | 1. Re-Appoiniment of
2023 September, (VCTY Oiher Audio - [ Mr. Rajendra Siddhoji
2023 at 02:00 | Visual Means Redakar (DIN; 02713973)
p.m. ("OANVMT) as a Mon-Executive,
Independent Director of the
Company.
J1st March, held on OTth YVideo Conferencing
2022 September, ("VC") Other Audio -
2023 al 11.00 Visual Means
a.m A

("D
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2.

FPOSTAL BALLOT

Mo special resolution was passed during the year 2024-2025 by way of posial baflat.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The results of the Company are submitted to the stock exchanges where the shares of
the Company arz listed and published in the Newspapers such as Active Tirme (English)
and in Pratahkal (Marathi) after the approval of the Board. The results are also posted
on the company's website, Whenever the company issues any press release, it is
immediately sant to the Stock Exchanges aswell as posted on the company's website,

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

i)

Date, Time and Venue
of Shareholder's
Meeting:

Date : 22.09.2025 {(Monday)
Time : 11.30 am.

Through Video Conferencing and

DHher Audio-Visual Means

Financial Year

2024-2025

Book Closurs

16/09/2025 (Tuesday) to 22/09/2025 (Monday)

(Both days inclusive)

Dividend Payments MIL
Date
Corporate L72900MH1974PLC287552

Identification Nao.

fid)

Mame and addrass of
Stock Exchange on
which the Company is
Listed :

BSE Limited (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 D01

Serip Code : 505343

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
7. Lyons Range, Dalhouse, Murghighata,
B B D Bhag, Kalkata - 700 001
Telephone: 033 - 223572T0/22357271

Facsimile: D33- 22156823
(Serip Code - 023557)
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iil. Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited
Vibgyer Towers, 4 th floor, Plot No C 82, G-Block,
Opp. Trident Hotel, Bandrakura Complex,
Bandra (E.), Mumbai- 400098
Telephone: 022 - 6112 9000
(Scrip Code: MONOT)

ISIN : Equity-INEBT1D01024

Website : wwiw. monotypeindialtd.in

Name and address of | Niche Technologies Pwt. Ltd.

Registrar & Share 34, Auckland Place, Tth Floor, Room Mo, 7A & T8,
Transfer Agent : Kolkata - 700 017

E-mail id.; nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com
Telephone; (033) 2280-8616/6617/6618
Website: www nichetechpl.com

(iv) Stock Market Data Relating to Equity Shares: 52 Weeks high and low price

Month Open High Low Close Volume

Apr-24 0.54 0.92 0. 54 0.84 19750903
May-24 0.85 0.93 0.7 0.86 23388745
Jun-24 1.02 1.07 .89 D04 Bra3nasd
Jul-24 0.a7 1.12 0.87 0.87 3BBE0378
Aug-24 0.86 11 0.8 097 44602665
Sep-24 0.88 1.01 0.87 083 23093863
Cict-24 0.87 1.06 0.81 0.94 34795813
Nov-24 |  0.98 1.91 0.96 191 | 59638611
Deac-24 2 242 1.83 1.83 23813821
Jan-25 1B 18 1.03 1.03 20066447
Feb-25 1.01 1.08 0.68 0.81 62383806
Mar-25 0.8 0.8 0.67 0.7 14846799

(5]



MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED

507 Annwal General Meeting 2025

(v)

(vi)

(i)

Share Transfer System

All share transfer request and request for transmission [ fransposition elc. subject to

correctness and complation of all documents would normally ba registered and refurned
within fifteen days from the date of receipt by Mis, Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd,, the
Regisirars and Share Transler Agenls.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 315t March, 2025

ar. No. of | % of Total

No. Category Share Share Total Shares | % of Total
holders | holders

1| 1-500 g8506 71.5819 1,16,05,011 1.6505
2 | 501-1000 15320 11.1327 1,290,062 670 1.8479
3 | 1001 - 5000 16311 11.8528 1.29,92,670 5.2767
4 | 3001 - 10000 SOTE 2.2353 241,395,042 34326
& | 10001 - 50000 2762 2.0071 541,337,883 9.1219
6 | 50001 - 100000 867 | 06300 | 72979973 10.3794
¥ | 100001 = and above 7T 0.56.3 | 48,01,69,243 682910
Total 137613 100.0000 | 70,31,21,889 100.0000

Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity

Under the Depository system, the ISIN aliolted to Company's Equity Shares

ks

INEST110071024.

| Particulars Mo. of Shares Percentage
: MSDL 323408277 4E%

: CDSL A609ETI16 51.34%

| Physical 18726296 2.66%

| Total 703121889 100.00%

As at March 31, 2025, 97.34% of the Equity Share Capital is held in electronic form.
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{viii) Qutstanding Convertible Securities

(ix)

{x)

The Company has not issued any Convertible Secunties in the past and hence as on
March 31, 2025, the Company does not nave any outstanding convertible Securitias,

Commaodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

The Company ia nol matarially exposed to commaodity price nsk. The company alsodoes
not carry out any commodity hedging activities.

Address for Investor Correspondence :

M=. Prerna Mehta

Compliance Officer

2, First Floor, Rahimtocola House, 7 Homiji Sireet,
REI Hormimal Circla, MUMBAI - 400001,

E-Mall id.: monotypeindialtd@gmall.com

Tal.: 022 0068190
Wabsita: www.monotypeindiaitd.in

NICHE TECHNOLOGIES PVT. LTD

34, Auckland Place,

7th Floor, Room No. TA& TE,

Kolkata - 700 017, West Bengal

e-Mail Id.. nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com
Tel.: (033) 2280-6616/ 6617 / 6618
Website: www.nichetechpl.com

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT

Ta the beat of my knowledge and belief, | hereby affirm that the Board Members and Senlor
Management Personnel of the Gompany have fully complied wilh the provisions of Code of Sonduct as
laid down by the Company for Directors and Sanior Management Personnel during the financial year
ended 31st March, 2025,

FOR MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED
Sdi-

MARESH JAIN

WHOLETIME DIRECTOR

DIN: 00291983

Date:; 286/05/2025
Place; Mumbal

&



MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED 50" Annual General Meeting 2025

CEQ & CFO CERTIFICATION

I, Naresh Jain, Whole Time director and Chief Financial Officer, certify that:

A

| have raviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for tha financial year
2024-2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

L These statements do not contain any matenally untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

i.  These stalements logether presant a true and fair view of the Company's affairs
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations

There are, 10 the besl of our knowledge and beliel, no transactions enlered into by the
Company during the financial year 2024-2025, which are fraudulent, ilegal or volatile of
the Company’s code of conduct.

| accepl responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporfing. | have evaluated the effectivenass of internal control systems of the Company
paraining to financial raporting and | have not noticed any deficiency in the design of
operalion of such internal controls or of which that needs to be rectified, or informed to
the auditors and the Audit Committes.

During the financial year undar raview, it was disciosed to the Auditors and the Audil
Committee that:

i There were no significant changes in intemal control over financial reporting;
il. No significant changes in accounting policies were made during the year; and

. Mo instances of significant fraud and the involvement therein. if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's intemal
control system over financial reporting, has come to our notice.

FOR MOMOTYPE IMDIA LIMITED
ad/-

Maresh Jain

Whole Time Director

DiM: 00291963

Date: 28/05/2025
Place: Mumbai
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To,

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Tha Mambers
Monotype India Limited

1.

Suprabhat Chakraborty, the Secretarial Auditors of Monotype India Limited (“the
Company”], have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by
the Company, for the vear ended on March 31, 2025, as stipulated in regulations 17 to
27 and clauses (b) 1o (i) of regulation 48(2) and par Cand D of Schedule V of the SEBI
{Listing Obligations and Disclosura Requiraments) Requlations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing
Regulations").

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Govemnance is the responsibility of the
Management. My axamination was |imited to procedures and implemantation theraof,
adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statemant of tha company.

Based on my examination of the relevant records and according to the information and
explanations provided to me and the representations provided by the Management, |
earlify that the Company not complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) 1o (i) of regulation 46{(2) and para C and
D of Schedule V' of the SEBI Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31,2025,

| furthar state that such compliance s nelther an assurance as 1o the future viahility of
the Company nor of the efficlency or effectivenass with which the Management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Suprabhat Chakraborty.

Company Secratary In Practice

Sdi-

ACS No.:41030

C.P No.:15878

UDIN: A041030G001072049

Peer Review Certificate no.:2284/2022

Date: 21/08/2025
Place: Kolkata
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ta the Members of
MONOTYPE INDIALIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statemeanis
O pinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial slaterments of MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED
(“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3151 March 2025, the Statement of
Frofit and Less, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and noles o the Ind AS financial statermeants, including & summary of significant accounting
policies and otherexplanatony information,

In owr opinion and o the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given o us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as
amendad ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in canformity with the
accounting principles generally acceptad In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
harch 31, 2025, and profitfoss, changes in equily and its cash flows for the vear ended on that
date.

Bagizs for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Awdifing {SAs) specified under
saction 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Cur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are indepandent of the Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Inztitute of Charterad Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our cther ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial
statemenis.

Emphzasis of Matter Paragraph
We draw attention to the following:

As mentioned in Mobe No. 38 of the Financial Results, the Company haz had trading and demat
acocounts with Guiness Secuntes Limited (G5L) since 2074 and had awvailed margin funding
facilities through the said broker.

AsofMarch 31, 2025, the Company held securnties with a tolal market valee of 28,58,14,107.14in
its demat account maintained with GSL. Against thiz, an amount of 27,70,35,646.1%9 was pavable
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io GSL. The Management has intemally adjusted the wvalue of the securites against the
outstanding iability, resulting ina netrecoverable balance of 287, 78,4 60,95,

However, Guiness Secunties Limited has been declared a defaulter by the Mational Stock
Exchange and is curenily unfraceable. Conseguently, the Company has written off the net
recoverable balance of 287, T8 460 95 as bad debls in its books of accounts, since recovery of the
same is considered improbakble.

Key Audit Matters

Key audil matters are those mallers that, inour professional judgment, wene of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the cument penod. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separaie opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate inour report.
Auditor's Response

Chir audit procedures included undarstanding and avaluating procaesses and confrols designed
and implemantad by the management for assassment of said fansaction and lasting thelir
operating effectivensss, oblaining the list of decuments and communications, inspecting the
supporing evidence, the prevailing market valuation as per the Valuation reports submitied to us
and criically assessing management's evaluation through discussions with management on the
s8id transaction.

inlight of the above, we did not identify any material exceptions as a result of above procedures.
Other Information

Tha Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the athear information. The other informalion
comprises the Director's Report, Management Discussion and Analysis and Business
Razponsibility Report but doas not include the Ind AS fimancial statements and our auditors ne port
thereon. The othar information is expected to be made available to us afterthe date of this auditor's
repart, Dur opinion on the Ind AS financial statemeants does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, In connection with our awdit of the Ind
A5 financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other information identified above when i
becomes available and, in doing so, consider whaether such other information is materially
incansistent with tha Ind AS finandal stataments or our knowledge obtainad in the audit or
otherwisa appears o be materaily misstaled.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matiers stated in section 134({5) of the
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Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statemenis that give a true and fair view ofthe financial position, financial perfiormance, changes in
eguity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
ofthe Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequale accounting records in accordance with fhe
pravisions of the Act for safeguarding of the asseals of the Company and for praventing and
detecling frauds and other iregularites; salection and appbcation of approphate accounting
policies: making judgments and estimates thal are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementaton and maintenance of adequate inlermal financial controls, thal were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completenass of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentalion of the financial statements that give a frue and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error,

in preparing the Ind AS financial stalements, management is responsible for assessing he
Company's ability to conlinue as a going concam, disclosing, as applicable, mattars related to
going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
toliquidate the Company or 1o ceasa oparations, or has norealistic allernalive but ta do so.

Board of Directors ara also responsible for oversaeing tha Company's financial reporling process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemants

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable asaurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue an
awditors report that includes owr opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high leval of assuranca, butis
not a guarantea thal an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always datect a material
missiatament when it exists. Misstatements can arisa from fraud or error and are considerad
matarial if, individually or in tha aggregate, they could reasonably be expactad to influence the
gconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an awdit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

. |dentify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the Ind AS financial statements,
whethar due to fraud or eror. dasign and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain gudit evidence that ia sufficiant and appropnate to provide & basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a materal misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may invoive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepreseniations, or the override of internal conirod.

E Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design awdit
procedures that are appropriate in the drcumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing cur opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls: system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.
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" Evaiuate the approprnateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of
accounting esiimates and related disciosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidencs obtained, whether a material unceriainty exists
related to evants or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability 1o
continua as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncerdainty exisls, wa are
required to draw attention in our avditor's raport o the related disclosures i the financial
slaterments or, if such disclosures are inadequale, o medify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audt evidence obtained up to the date of cur audilor's report Howaver,
future everts or conditions may cause the Company o cease o continue as a going
COnCen,

. Evaluate the owerall presentation, structure and content of the financia! statements,
including the disciosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underying
transactions and evenls in a mannar that achiaves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govermance regarding, among other matiers, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies ininternal control that we icentify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have compied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and t©o communicate with them all
relationships and other mattera that may reasonably be thought to bearon our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governmance, we determine those
matters that wera of most significance in the awdit of tha financial stataments of tha curent period
and are therafore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report uniess
law or requlation precludes public disclosura aboul the matter or when, in axtramaly rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in cur report because the
adverse consaguences of doing 5o would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interast
benefits of such communication,

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

y [ Az reguired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Ordar, 2020 ["the Ordar’), issued by the
Cantral Govamment of India in terms of sub-section {11) of saction 143 of tha Companies
Act, 2013, we give in *Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 ofthe Order, to the extent applicable.

Z.  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

(a8} Wehave sought and oblained all the information and explanations which tothe bestof
our knowledge and belief wers necessary for the purposes of our audit;
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(D)

()

(d)

(e}

()

(a)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law hiave been kept by the
Company sofarasit appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealtwith by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In aur aginian, the aforesaid inancal statemants comply with e Indian Accounting
Standards spaacfied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies ((Indian
Accounling Standards) Rudes, 2015 as amanded;

O the basls of the writlen representalions received from the directors as on 3158
March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 315t March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in {ferms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the intermal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in“Annexure B,

With respect to the other matlers fo be includad in the Auditors Report in accordance
with Rula 11 of the Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2044, in our opinicn and (o
the best of our information and according to the explanations givan o us:

I The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact s
financial position,

i The Company did nol have any long-term conlracls including derivabive
conftracis forwhich thera ware any material foreseaable losseas.

il.  There were no amounts which were required to ba transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

v, a) The management has representad that, o the best of its knowledge and
balief, no funds have been advanced or [oaned or invested (githar from
borowed funds or share premium or any ofher sources or kind of funds)
by the company to orin any other parsons or entities, including foraign
entities ("Intarmediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
mannar whalsoever by or on behad of the company (“Ultmate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarankes, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b)  The management has represented that, o the besi of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any persons or

enfities, including foreign enfities ("Funding Parties®), with the
=
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understanding, whether recorded in wrling or otherwise, that the
company shall, whather, direclly or indirectly, fend or invest in other
parsons of entities dentifiied in any mannar whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Fary ("Uitimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantae,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c} Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come toour notice that has
caused us io believe that the representations under sub clause (a) and
{b) contain any matenal misstatement

W, Duringthe year, the Company has not declared any dividend.

vi. Basedonouw examination in accordance with the Implementation Guidance on
Reporting on Audil Trail under Bule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 |ssued by the Institute of Chanered Accountants of India, which
included test checks, the Company has not used acocounting softwares for
maintaining its books of saccount for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has nol
been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
softwares,

Further, during the course af our audil wea were unable 1o check any instanca of the audat radl
faatura baing tamperad with since there was no Audit Trail maintamed. Our examination of tha
audit trail was in the context of an audil of financial stalemeanis carned oul in accordance with the
Standard of Auditmg and only 1o the extent required by Fule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014,

We have not carried out any audit or examination of ihe audit trall beyvond the matters required by
the aforesaid Ruke 11(g) norhave we camied out any standalone audit or examination of the audil
trail.

As proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts] Rules, 2014 is applicable fram April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on presarvation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial
yvearanded March 31, 2025,

For B M Gattani & Ca.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI FRM: 113536W
Balmukund N Gattani
Proprietor

Membership No. 047066
UDIM: 25047066BMLILVIETD
Place: Mumbal

Date: 28/05/2025
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ANNEXURE "A"
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred io in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Cther Legal and Regulstory Requirements’ section of owr
rapar bo the Members o/ MONOTY PE INDLA LIMITED of even data)

Report on the Companies [Auditor's Report) Order, 2020, issued in tarms of Section 143(11) of
the Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act") of Monotype India Limited [“the Company")

In terms of tha information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and tha books of
eccount and records axamined by us inthe normal course of audit and to tha beat of our knowledoa and
belief, we state that:

iy a A, The Comparny has maintained proper records showing full parficulars, including
guantitative detalls and sitwation of Praperny, Plantand Equiprment;

B. Thie Company doss not hawve any intangible assats hence, no eoonds showing the
partEulars oftheinlangible assets wereavailabrla

b} The Propery, Plant and Equipment were physically veriied by the management in
accordance wilh a ragular programime of verfication at rmasonable intervals. Atcording 1o
information and explanation gven to us, no such maienal discrepancies were noticed on
such verification

cl The Company doas not own ary iImmovable property. Accordingly, paragraph 3{ijc)ofthe
orderis notapplicable o the company.

d)  The Company has not revaluated ils Property, Plant and Equipmen! (including Right of
use Assets) during the year ended March 31, 2025, Accordingly, paragraph 3{iyd) of the
order iz nol applicable to the company.

e) Mo proceeding has been intiated or pending against company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1288 (45 of 1988) and rules
madea thereunder, hence, paragraph 3{i}e) of the crder is nol applicable b the Company.,

(i) a} According fo the information and explanation given to us, the nature of business of the
Campany s such thal it does nol have any physical inventories. Accordingly paragraph
li)(a) of the orderis not applicable o tha Company.

b} Diring the year no working capital limits had been sanctionad to the company in excess of
5 crore rupees, in aggragate, from Bank arxd Financal instilulions on ke bazis of security
of current assets, Accordingly, the provisions of the Clause 3Hi)b) of the Order is not
applicabie to the Company and heance not commented upon.

(i}  According o information and explanations given tous, tha company has nod granted any loans,
gecured or ungecured to companies, firms, Limited Liahility Parinerships or oiher parties coverad
in the regeter maintained under gection 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Hence, Clausa (i) of
tha Paragraph 3 of the Crdar is nat applil:ab'ha_tllj tha Comparny,
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(i)

vil)

In aur opinkon and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has nos
advanced loans to Directors/Company In which the director is interested towhich the provisions
of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 apply and nence not commentad uporn.

Alsa, in o opinicn and according to the information and explanation gren to usg, the Company
has nol made investment and given guarantes/provided security which faks under the purvdew of
sechon 186 of the CompaniasAct, 2013 and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
deposits during the year and doas not have any unclaimed deposits a8 at March 31, 2025 and
therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicabls to the Company and
hence notcommented upon,

Az per the information and explanation given fo us, the maintenance of cost records specified by
the Central Govemment under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not
applicable tothe Company and hence not commented upon.

aj The Company has generally been reguler in depositing undisputed siatutory dues
including Income-tax, Goods & Service Tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Customs duty, Excise
duty, Value Added Tax, cess and any other material stafutory dues applicabie o i with the
approprate autharnties.

Thare were no undisputed amaunts pavatda in respact of Income-tas, Goods & Sarvice Tax
Salas tax, Service Tax, Custams duty, Excise duly, Value Added Tax, cass and any athar material
siatutory dues im arrears, & at March 31, 2025 for 3 perod of mere than sic months from the date
they became payable, axcepl the following:

Mame of the | Nature of dues Amount Period to Forum whane
Statute under section | (Rs. in Lacs) which the dispute is
amaount relates pending
Income Tax TDE Inferast 0014 AN 2022-23 | Unpaid till date
Act. 10961 an payrment
Default w/s 201
Income Tax TOE Interes] 18.FhI- Prior Yaars Unpaid 1l date
Act, 1961 on Deduction
Default u's 201
Income Tax TOS Interest ; L2
Act 1081 on Dt 0.0/ Priar Years Unpaid till dake
Drefault uls 201
Income Tax Shor Linpaid fill date
At 1961 Disditicilr 0134 Friar Yaars
Income Tax Late Filing ; ol
Act, 1861 Fees W 294E 0.414- Prior Years | Unpaid fill date
Incame Tax I"tgl';%?é J”'IE' 0.02- Priat Years | Unpaid till date
Act, 1961
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Details of dues of Income Tax, Ssles Tax, Senice Tax, Excise Duty and Value added Tax
which have not been deposited as at 31st March, 2025 on sccount of dispute are given
balow:

Mame of the | Mature of dues Amount Period to Forum where
Statute under section | (Rs. in Lacs) | which demand | the dispute is
relates pending
Income Tax Income Tax S43.61)- AN 2019-20 CIT (A)
Act, 1961
Incama Tag Incorme Tax 158 400 A 2018-19 CIT (A}
Act, 1961
Income Tax Income Tax B0, S4/- ANE01T-18 CIT (A}
Aok, 1961
Income Tax Income T a5 20 AN 2018-17 CIT (A}
Act, 1981
Income Tax Income Tax 220,371 AY.2015-16 CIT (&)
Act, 1961
Incame Tax Incame Tax 911 06 AN 2014-15 CIT (&)
Act, 1861
Income Tax Income Tax 556, 44/ AT 20314 CIT (A)
Act, 1961

* Raclification filed with CPC Order
The Statufory Dues disciosed for the respective peniod exclides any inigrest charges
appiicable Io the same.

Mo transachons have been recorded in the books of account which has been surrendsered or
disdhosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the income Tax Act 1961 (43
of 1961), Accordingly, paragraph 3{viil) af the ordar is not applicable to the Company.

al

b

d)

According o the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in any loans of borrowings taken from financial institulions, banks and government or has
notissued any debentures during the year.

The Company has not been dedlared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
govemnment orany govemnment authory,

Duging the vear no Term Loans were taken. Accordingly reporing under clause 3 (ix)ic) of
the Order ks not applicable to the Company and hance notcommentad upan,

Cin an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds were
raisad. Accordingly reparting under clause 3 {ix¥d) of the Order is not applicable ta the

Company and hence ot commented upon,
eal
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(i)

(e}

()

(xv)

e)

aj

b}

]

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or jaint veniure, Accordingly, the
reqguirement to repart on clause Jiix)(e)] of the Order is not applicabie o the Company and
REnce not Commanied upon.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venhure, Accordingly, the
reguirement to report on Clause 3ix jf) of the Order is not appécable o the Comparny.

According io the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer or fusther public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x){a} of the Order i nol applicable to the
Company and hence, nod commented upon,

According o the information and explanations ghven 1o us, the company has not made any
preferential alloiment or private placement of shares or converible debenfures (Fully,
partially or optionady converible) during the vear Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)b) of the
Orderisnot applicable ta the Company and hence, not commentad upon.

To the best of our knowledgs and acoording to the imformation &nd explanations given 1o
us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been naoticed or reported
dusring the year.

Since, no malerial fraud by company or on the company has been noficed or reported
during the year, tharefore, no reparting under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filad by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13
of Companies { Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 with the Ceniral Govemment;

Acearding 1o the information and axplanations given o us, the Company has rol raceived
anmy whistie-blower complaints, henca, the provigions of the clause 3 (#i)(c)of the Crder iz
not applicable to the Company,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a MNidhi Company. Conseguently, provisicne of clavse 3({xii) of the Order iz not applicable to the
Company and hence, not commented upon,

Im casr epinion and according to the information amd explanationa given to us, tranaactions with
the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details of relaled party ransactons have been discosed in the Financial
Stalemenis, as required by the applicabls Indian accounting standards.

aj

)

The company has an internal awdil system commensurate with the size and nature of Its
Dusinass,

The reports of the internal audior for the penod under audit have been considered by the
statutory audior,

According to the information and expianations given 1o us, during the year the Company has nat
entered into any non-cash fransactions with its directors or persons connected with him and
henca provisions of section 152 of the Companias act, 2013 is nol applicable lo the Company.

Tenl
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d)

According to the information and explanations given o us, the Company is not required to
b registerad under section 45-14 of the Resarve Bank of India Act, 1934 and henca, the
proviaions of the clause 3 (xvi)ia) of the Order i nol applicable to the Company,

The company has nof conducted any Mon-Banking Financial activities during the reporting
year and hence, the provisions of the clause 3 (2vijb) of the Order is not applicable o the
Company.

The company is nola CGone Investment Company {CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Raserve Bank of India. Accordingly provisions of clause 3(xvi j{c) of the Order is o
appiicable to the Company and henoe, not commented upon.

Sincs the company is not a Core Investmant Company (CI0), the provisions of clausea
3wvi)d ) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence, not commented upon

{xvil) The company has not incurred cash losses durng the Financial Year 2024-25 and in the
immediataly preceding Financial Year 2023-24.

Ceviii) Durireg the vear there has been no resignation of the statulory asditors during the year; hanoa
provisions of clause Hxviil) of the Order are not applicable tothe Company

(xix} On the basis of the finandial ratios, ageing and expecled dates of realizalion of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, otherinformation accompanying the financial statements, the
auditor's knowledge of the Boand of Directoes and management plans, the auditor is of the
cplnicn that no matedal uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company [s
capable of maeting ils liabilites axisting at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall dusa
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,

(xx)  Since the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility under saction 135 of the companies Act,
2013 is mol applicable to the Company. Accordingly. there is mo repofing requirement under
clause 3(xx) of the ordar

(xxi} Since the company does not have any group company and no consalidated financial statements
are prepared, the provizions of clause 3{xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and
Firecn, Aot commanied upon

ForB M Gattani & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFRM: 113536W

Balmukund N Gattani

Proprictor

Moembership No. 047006
UDHN: 2504 T066BMLILV1B10

Place : Mumbai
Date: 26052025
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ANNEXURE"B"
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred toim paragraph 2{f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements sectionof our
rapa bo the members of MONOTY PE INDLA LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clausea (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 20132 [“the Act")

Wea have audited the internal financial contrels ovar financial reporting of MONCTYPE INDIA LIMITED
("the Company™) &8 of March 31, 2025 in conjuncton with owr audit of the Ind AS financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's managernent B responsile for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the intemal contral over financial reparling criteria established by the Company considenng
the essential componants of intemal control stated in the Guidance MNole on Audit of Intermal Financial
Contrals over Financial Reporting issued by the Instituie of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibdities nclude the design, |r'|"|p|Ei‘|'IE.‘I'ILE-1.iUr'I and mainlenance of adeguate mlemal linancial
controls thal wene oparatirg sffectively for ansuring the orderly and efficient condud al its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the sefequarding of its assets, the prevention and cetecton
of frauds and efmors, the accuracy and completeness of the acounting records, and the tmely
praparation al reliable financial informaticn, as required under tha Companiasact, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibilty s 0 express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over financial
reparing basad onowr audit, We conducied our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mate on Audit of
Intemnal Financial Controds Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Nofe"} issued by the Institute of
Chartarad Accountants of India and tha Standards on Auditing prascrbed under section 143{10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, tothe extent applicabie to an audt ofinternal financial confrols, Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical reguirements ard plan and perform the audit
to oblain reasonable assurance sboul whether adaquate infernal financal controls over linancial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated sffectively in all material
respacis.

Cur audit invalves perfarming procaderes o obtain audit evidenca about the adequacy of the intamal
financial controls system overfinancial reporting and theiroperating effectiveness. Dur gudit of intemal
firancial controls over finandal repording Inciuded obtaining an understanding of internal financial
confrals over financial reporling, assessing the nsk that a matenal weakness exists, and lesting and
evaluating the design and cperafing effectiveness of intermal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatament of the financial statements, whather due 1o fraud or error,

Wa balipve that the audd evidence we have chiained is sufficlent and approprate to prondde a basis for
our audit opinkoen on the Company’s internal inandal contrals system over financial reporting,

el
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Meaning of iIntermal Fimancial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s intemal financial contred over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financisl
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principies. A
company’s internal financial control over finandal reporing includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertainiothe maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the
franzactions and dispositions ofthe assets of the company;

(2] provide reasonable assurancea that transactions are recorded 25 necessany to permit pre paration
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thal
receipls and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorzations of management and directors of the company; and

(31 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acaquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets thal could have a material effect an the
financial statements.

Inharent Limitations of Infernal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Becausa of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
passibiity of collugion or improper management overfide of confrols, material misstatemants due o
erroror fraud may scour and not ba dateciad. Also, projectons of any evabluation of tha infemal financial
contmils over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the infternal financial contral
over financial reporing may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degres of
comphance with the policies or procadunes may deteriorate,

Opinian

In our apinson, to the bast of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Company
hag, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system overfinancial repaortirg and
such internal financial controls over financial reparting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025,
based on the internal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considenng
the essential componants of intemal control stated in the Guidence Note on Awdit of Intermal Financial
Controls Cver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chamered Accountants of india,

For B M Gattani & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFRM; 113536W

Balmukund N Gattani
Proprietor

Membership No. (47066
UDIN: 2504 TOEEEBMLILVIBID

Place : Mumbai
Date: 280052025
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March 2025
(Rupees in Lakhs Except EFS)
Particulars Note No. As at As at
315t March 2025  31st March 2024

ASSETS
MHon-current asseis

Froperty, Plant and Equipment 3 244 291
Deferred tax assels (net) 4 283 3.09
Other non-current assels 5 3.00 3.00
Current assets
Inventories ] 72510 O58.56
Financial Assels
Trade receivables 7 - 0.40
Cash and cash equivalents 8 7.86 8.12
Other current assets 9 249 13.62
Total Assats T43.48 BE9.29
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share capital 10 7.031.22 7.031.22
Other Eguity 11 (7.195.99) i8,452.34)
Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities 12 11.88 12.10

Currant llabilities
Financial Liabilifies
i Bomowings 13 800.32 1.621.87
ii Trade Pavables;-
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises 14 . 770,36
Oither current liabilities 15 5.05 .09
FProvisions 16 — -
Total Equity and Liabilities T43.48 989.29
Bee accompanying notes forming Part of Financial Staterment 1to 30
For B M Gattani & Co. For MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED
iChariered Accountants (CIM ; LT2900MH1974PLC287552)
ICAI FRN : 113536W
(Maresh Jain) {Suryakant Kadakane)
Whole Time Director & CFD Director
Balmukund N Gattani
Brikiidior " DIN: 00291963 DIN: 02272617

UDIN : 25047066BMLJLVIBET0
DCrate: ZB/05/2025
Place: Mumbai

Company Secratany
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the financial year ended 318t March 2025
{Rupees in Lakhs Except EPS)

Particulars MNote Az al As al
Na, 3ist March 2025  31st March 2024
| Revenus From operations 17 6,106.81 458,45
Il Other Income 18 342 601.23
Nl Total Income (I+l) 6,200.33 1.059.67
IV Expenses
Purchases of Stock-in-Tradea 19 4,516.15 -
Changes in inveniores of finished goods,
Stock-in -Trade and workin-prograss 20 23345 ar 833
Employes benelits expansa 21 2.04 0.53
Finance costs 22 BE.21 44 83
Depreciation and amorization expenses 3 0.02 .40
Other expensas 23 125.56 27 .35
Total Expenses (IV) 4,943.42 131.02
¥V Profit/{loss) before exceptional
items and tax {llI-1V) 1,256.91 928.66
V1 Exceptional tems - 1.40
Vil Profit/ (loss) after exceptions items and tax (V-VI) 1,256.91 92726
Vil Tax Expanses:
{1) Current Tax - -
{2) Defarred Tax 0.55 0,53
{(3) Excess/Shorl pravision of tax - -
IX Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing
operations (VII-VIN) 1,256.35 926.73
& Profitf{loss) from discontinued operations -
X| Tax expenses of discontinued operations - -
2l Profiti{loss) from Discontinued
operations (after tax}) (X-XI) . P
XN Profiti{loss) for the period 1,256.35 926.73
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(Rupees in Lakhs Except EPS)
Particulars Mote As al As at
No. 3t March 2025  3ist March 2024

XIV Other Comprehensive Income
A (1) Ivems that will not be reclassifled
to profit or loss . -
(I} Income tax relating 1o items that
will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss - -

B (i) Itemsthatwil be reclassified to
profit or loss = x
fi} Income tax relating to items that will be
reclazsified to profit or loss . -

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the
period Comprising Profit (Loss) and
Other comprehensive Income for the period) 1,256.35 326,73

XVIEarnings per equity share (for continuing operation):
1 Basic 0.17 013
2 Diluted 0.17 013

AVl Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation):
i Basic - -
2 Diluted - -

XVl Earning per equity share
(for discontinued & continuing operation) 24

1 Basic 017 .13

2 Diluted 0.17 013
See accompanying notes forming Fart of Financial Statement 1
For B M Gattani & Co. For MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED
Chartered Accountants (CIM @ LT2800MH1574PLC287552)
ICAI FRN : 113536W

(Maresh Jain) (Suryakant Kadakane)

Balmukund N Gattani Whole Time Director & CFO Director
Proctiatar an DIN; 00291963 DIN: 02272617
Membership No. 047066 (Prerna Mehta)

UDIN : 2504T066BMLIJLVIB10
Date: 28052025
Flace: Mumbai

Company Secretary
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Cash Flow Statemeant for the year ended as at 31st March 2025
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Maote As at As at
Mo, Jist March 2025 21st March 2024

Cash flows from Operating Activities

MNet Profit before Tax 1,256.91 927 .26
Adjusted For :
Depreciation and Amorization 0.02 0.49
Finance Cost 66.21 44 B3
Interest Income — =
COperating profit / (Loss) before working capital changes 1,323.13 aT2.57

Changes in Working Capital:

{Increasa)Decraazae in Trade Recaivables 0.40 1.50
(IncreasayDecraase in Inventones 23345 a7.83
(Increase)Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets — —
{Increasa)Decraasa in Other Current Assels 11.13 (13.41)
Increase/(Decrease) in Dther Non-Current Liabities (0.22)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities  {770.36) —
Increase/(Decreasea) in Other current liabilities (0.04) 3.08

Increase/{Dacreasea) in Shod term provision — —

Cash Generated from /{used in) Operation T797.45 1.022.48
Tax paid (net of refunds) —_ —_
Net cash flow from operating activities {A) Ta7.49 1,022.48

&l
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(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Mote As at As at
No. st March 2025  31st March 2024

Cash flows from Investing Activities
Interest racaived — ==

Proceads from disposal of Fixed Assels — —

Met cash flow from /

(used in) investing activities (B) — —
Cash flows from Financing Activities
Loans = ==
Finance Cost (66.21) (44 83)
Repayment from Short-term borrowings (731.55) (269.98)
Met cash flow from [ (used in)
Financing activities iC) (T97.76) (1,014.80)
Met increase | (decrease)
in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (0.27) 7.68
Cash and cash eguivalenis
as at the baginning of the year 8.12 0.45
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year 7.B6 8.12

See accompanying notas forming part of the financial statements
Mote :

al _lﬂ'lﬂ above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Meathod" as sat
out in the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flow.

b) Thereare nonon-cash item transactions noted during the vear except as stated above.

For B M Gattani & Co. For MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED

Chartered Accountants (CIN ; L72800MH1974PLC2B7T552)

AT FRN: %125 {MNaresh Jain) [Sunyaxant Kedakane)
N i Whole Time Director & CFO Director

DG 1 Gatin DIN: 00291363 DIN: 02272617

Membership No. 047066 (Prerna Mehia)

UDIN : 2504 7066BMLIJLV1810
Date: 28052025
Place: Mumbsai

Company Secratary
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025
1. General Infarmation

Monotype India Ltd. (the 'Company') is a8 company limited by share and domiciled in India with its
reqestered office located al Premises Mo.2, 151 Flooe, 7 Homgl Sirest, Rahimtoola House, Fort,
Mumbai — 400 001. The Company was mcorporated on 30th September, 1674, af Calcutta as a
Private Limifed Company under the Companies Act, 1956 and converted into & Public Limited
Company on 23rdDctober, 1976, Hon'ble Calouita High Court vide order dabed 08th Decembser,
2014 had approved the scheme for amalgamation of Mono Herbicidas Lid, Gateway Destributor
Limited, Unicorm Yyapar Limifed, Subhankar Vinimay Limited, Swagatam Tradevin Limited and
Lotus Financial Management Private Limited with Monctype India Limited. Shares of Company
ara Lisled on BSE (Scrip Code: 505343), Calcutta Stock Exchange (Scrip Code: 023557) and
Metropofitan Stock Exchange of India (Scnp Code: MONCT). The Company is engaged in the
business of Trading in Shares and incidental activities.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
A, Basic of Praparations
i Statement of Compliance

Thase Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indan
Eccounting Standards ('Ind AS') ss notfied by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
pursuant to section 133 of the Companizs Act, 2013 ["Act') read with Companias
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevani
provesions of he Actand rules mada thareundaer.

i« Basis of Measurement

The financhal statements have been prepared on an accrual system, based on the
principle of going concem and under the historcal cost convenlion, unless
otherwise stated. The accounting policies are apphied consistently to all the periods
presentad in the Financial Statements except where a newly Issued accounting
standard is initally adopled or a revision 1o an existing accounting standard requires
achange in the accounting policy hhertoin use.

iii. Wseof Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of Financial Statements In conformily with Ing AS requires
managemant 1o make judgments, estimates and assumplions in the applicaton of
accouniing podicies that affects the reported amounts of assets, isbilties etc. at the
date of these Financial Statemnents and the reporbed amounts of revenues and
expensas for the years presanted. Actual resuits may differ from these estimatas,
with ihe differences betwesn the same being recognized in the pericd in which the
reslilts are known oF matarialize,

el
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C.

Continuous evatuation is done an the estimaton and judgmeants based on histoncal
experence and other faciors, including expeciations of future events that are
believad to be reasonable. Reviskons o accounting estimates are recognised In
Financial Statements in the periad in which the estimate is revised if the revision
gfiects only that period or in the pericd of the revision & Future penod if revision
affects both current and future periods.

The areas mvolving critical estimates or judgements are:

a. Impairment of Financial Assets such as Trade Receivable.
b. Impairmant of Mon-Financial Assels.

. Estimates of Tax Expenses and Liabiity,

d. Revenue recognifions.

Currentand Non-Current Classification

The Company presenis assets and llabllities In its Balance Sheet based on cumrent versus
nan-curren! classification.

Anassel is classified as currenmt when it s

.

Expected io be realized or intendad ko sold or consumed in normal operating cyole,
Held primarily forthe purpase of frade.

Expected 1o be realized on demand orwithin twelve months afer the reporting date.
or

Cash ar cash aquivalant unlass rastricied from being exchanged ar used to satlla 3
liakikty for at least hwelve months afler the reporting date.

All otharassats ara cassifiad as non-curmant,

Aliability is classified as current whan:

iy

it Iz expecied o ba settled in normal oparating cyehe,

it iz held primarily for the purpose of trade,

it is due o be aattlad on demand or within heelve months after the reporting date,
and

there ks no unconditional right to defer the setthement of the lisbilty forat least twelve
monthz afier the reporting date.

The Gompany classifies all other liablities as non-currenl. Deferred lax assets and
liabilites are classified as Mon-Current Asseis and Liabilities.

Revenue Recognition

Revenua is measurad ai the fair value of the consideration receivad or recaivabla.
The Company recognises revenue when the amoun! of revenue can be reliably
measured, it i3 probable that future economic benefit will flow to the entity. The
Company bases iis estmales on histoncal results, taking inko consideration the
type of customer, the type of iransaction and the specific of each agreement,

ol
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i, Interest Income s recognized on -8 time proporton basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the effeciive interest rate applicable.

ii.  Profis { Lossas from share trading is determined on the basie of the “First In First
Out™ methnd.

D. Incomea Tawes

The income tax expense of credit for the period is the tax payvable on the current pericd’s
(axable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred
lax assels and liabiities altribuiable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if
any,

Tha current income tax charge s caloulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting pericd in the country where the Company
generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
refurms with respect to siuations in which applicable tax regulation is subject fo
nierpretation. I establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected o be paid to the tax authorities. Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
iabiity method, on temporary diferences arising between the tax bases of assets and
Eahilibes and thair camying amaounts in the financial stalements,

Defemad ncome tax |5 datermined using tax rates (and laws) thal have bean enacied o
substantially enacted by the and of the reporting period and are expectad o apply when
the related deferred income tas asset is realised or the deferred income tax Fahkility is
waitled,

Deferred Tax aseets are recognised for sl deductible tamporary differences, unused &
loszes and carry forsard tax credits only ifit is probable thal fulure taxable amaunts will be
available to ulllise those lemporany diferonces, laxlosses and tax cradils,

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offsat when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current lax assels and llabilities and when the deferred 1ax balances relate to the
same taxation authority, Surrent tax assels and tax labilfies are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right fo offset and intends either o settle on a net basis, or to
redliae the asset and settis the iability simultaneously

Current and deferred ax is recegnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the
axtant thal it relates to ilems recognised in othar comprehensive income or directly in
equily. In this case, the 1ax |s alse recognised In other comprehensive income or directly In
aguity, respactively.

E. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Propety, Plant & Equipment
The Company assasses at each reporting dates as to whether thare is any indication that

any propany, plant and eguipment may be impaired. If any such indication axisis the
recoverable amount of an assel is estimated o determing the extent of impairment, ifany.

Hal
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AN Impaiment loss is recognized in the Statement of the Profit and Loss to the extent,
asset’s camying amount excesds s recoverable amount, The recoverable amount IS
higher of an assel's fair value kess cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use Is based
on the estimated fulure cash flows, discounied to their present valve using pre-tax
discount rate thal reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk
specific to the aszels.

The impairment loss recognised in pricr accounting penod is reversed ifihere has been a
change in the estimate ofrecoverable amount.

Inventory

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value after providing Tor
obsolescence, if any. Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress include all costs of
purchases, conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. The net realizsable value s the estimated selling price in the
ardinary course of business less the estimaled costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary o make the sale.

Cashand Cash Equivalant

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits hebd at call with banks, other
shoat termn highly lioukd investmeants which ane eadily convartible into known amounts of
cash and are subjact 1o msignificant rsk of changes in value. Bank overdralls are shown
within borradngs incurrent liaghilitbes on the halance shest.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash fiow are reported using Indirect method, whare by net profit before tax is adjusted for
the effects of ransaction of non-cash nalure any deferrals o acoruals of past or fulure
operating cash receipts or pgyments and items of income and expenses associates with
invesling or financing activity. The Cash fliows from cperating, financing and investing
activity is shown separately,

Financial Instruments

Firarsial assets and financial kabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction
costs that are directly attribufable fo the acguistion or isswe of financial assets and
financial lizbilites. (other than finencial assets end finrancial kabilities at fair value throwgh
profit or loss ) are added o ordeducted from the fair value of the financial assets orfinancial
abililies, as appropriate, on intial ecognition. Transaction costs dirscly atiributalde
ihe aequisition of financial asssts or financial liabilities at {&ir value through profit or loss
arerecagnised immediataly in profit or loss,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset against each other and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet if, and only if, thera is a currently enforceabla lagal right to
offsetihe recognized amounis and there is an intention i settle on a net basis, orio realize
the assets and setlle the labiities simultaneoushy.

71}
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Financial Assets

Financial agsets are divided into the folowing calegosies:

a. financal assets carmied at amortised cosl

b fnancial assels at fair value through other comprehensive meome
i financial azzets at fair value through profit and loss;

Financial assets are assigned io the differant categories by management on initial
recognition, depending on the nature and purposs of the financial asseis. The
designation of financal azsets s re-évaluated al every reporling date at which a
choice of dassification or accounting treatment is available.

Financlal Azsets (ke Investments in Subsidiares are measured at Cost as allowed
by Ind-AS 27 — Separate Financial Statements and hence are not fair valued.

Financial agsets carrled at amortised cost

A fimancial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if & is held within &
business model whose objective is to haold the asset in order to collect contractual
cashilows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specifed
dafes o cash flows that are solely paymenis of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. These are non-derivative firancisl assets that are
mol quoted in an active markal. Loans and recekables {incuding trade and other
recenvables, bank and cash baanoas) are measured subsequent to Initial
recognition &t amortized cost using the effective interest methed, less provision for
impairment, Any change in their valug through mpaimment or reversal of
impairmant i recognized in the Stalemeant of profit and loss

In accordance with Ind AS 109: Financial Instrumentz, the Company recagnizes
imparment (055 allowance on trade recelvables and content advances based on
historicafly cbesarved default rates. Impairmant loss allowance recogrized durng
the financal year i charged to Statamant of profitand losa.

Financial assets at fairvalue through other comprehensive income

Financial assels at fair value through other comprahensive income are non-
dervalive financial assets held within a business model whose objective s
achieved by both collecling contractual cash flows and selling firancial assets and
the contractual ierms of the financial assel give risa on specified dates o cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interesl on the principal amount
oulstanding. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (O], Howewer, the Company recognizes interest incoma, impairment
Iosses in the statement of profit and ioss.
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I

vi.

Vil

Financial assets at fairvalue through profit or loss

A financial assel which Iz not classified in any of the above categones are
subsequently fair valued through profit or loss. It includes non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated as such or do not qualify forinclusion in any ofthe
other categories of financial assels. Gains and losses arising from investments
classified under this calegory is recognized in the Statementof profit and koss whan
they are sold orwhenthe investment is impaired.

Impairment of Financial Azsets

Inthe case of impairment, any loss previously recognized in other comprehensive
income k& transferred to the Stalement of profit and loss, Impaiment losses
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss on equity instruments are nol
reversed through the Sfatement of profit and loss. Impairment losses recognized
previously on debt securities are reversed through the Statermnent of profit and loss
when the increase can be related objeclively to an evenl occuming after the
impairment loss was recognized in the Statement of profitand loss.

When the Company considess thal fair value of financial assets can be reliably
measuraed, the fair valuss of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market are defermined by using valuation fechnigues. The Company applies its
Judgment to selact a vanaty of methods and make assumplions that are mainly
bassd on market condiions esstng at sach balance sheal date. Equity
instruments measured at fair value throwgh profit or loss that do not have a guated
price in an activa markat and whosa fair value cannot be reliably measured are
maasurad at costiess impairment al tha end of ach reporting pedod,

An assessment for impairmant = undertaken at leastat each balance shest date.
De-recognition of Financial Assats

Afinancial aasel s derecognized only where the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the assel expire or the financial assel s transferred and that transfer qualifies
for derecognition. Afinancial asset iz transferred if the contractual rights to recaive
the: cash flows of the asset have been transferred or the Company retains the
confractual rightls %o receve the cash llows of the asset bul assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. A financial asset that is
transfermed qualifies for derecognition if the Company transfers substartially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of 1he asset, or if the Company nelther retains nor
transfers substantially all (he risks and rewards of ownership bul does transfer
control of that asset.

Equity Instrumants
An equity mstrument is any contract thal evidences a residual interest in the asssts

of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instrumenis issued by the
Company is recognized al the proceads raceived, net of direct issue cosls.

=4l
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il

X.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilites are recognized when the Company Decomes a pary 1o the
contractual pravisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities ars initially measured
at the amorised cost unless at indial recogrétion they are classified as financial
liabilities at fair value throwgh profit or loss,

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilites are subsequently measured at amorntizad cost using the EIR
method, Financial iabiliies carried ai fair value through profit or loss are measurad
at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

De-recognition

Afinancial lability is derecognized only when the obligation is extinguished, that is,

when the obligation is discharged or cancelied orexpires. Changes in Babilities' fair
valee that are reported in profit or loss are included in the Statement of profit and
[0z within finanoa costs or finance iNcome.

oJ. Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipmeant are staled at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade
discount and rebales less sccumulated deprecalion and impairment losses, if any
Such costincludes purchass price, borrowing cost and any cosl directly attributabls
to bringing the assats toits working condition for its intended use.

f significant parts of an item of proparty, plant and egupmeant have different useful
lves, then they are accounted for as separate lems (major componenta) of
Property, plant and aquipment

Capiial work-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant and equipment and
related expenaes that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporling data.
Advares given lowards acguisition of propery, plant and equipment culstandng
al each balance shest dale are disclosed as Capital Advances undar other non-
currenl assats,

Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment ane
measurad as the differenca between the net disposal procaaeds and the camying
amourt of tha asset and are recognised in the Statement of Proft and Loss when
the asset s derecognised.
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fi. Subsequent Cost

Subsequent costs are inciuded in the assel's camying amount or recognised as a
separate assel, as appropriate, only when @ is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the enfity and the cost can be
measured refiably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss during the period inwhich they areincurmed.

lii. Depreciation/amorlisation on property, plant and egquipment

Depreciation on akl the assels have been provided at the rates and in the manner
prescribed in Schedule | of the Act on Written Down Value Method. Depreciation on
additions (o assets or on sake [/ disposal of assels is calculaled on the basis of Pro
rata basis from date of such addition or up o the month of such sale | scrapped, as
the case may be.

K. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable o the acgusition or conatruction of qualifying
assals are capitalized as part of the cosl of sech assets. A qualifving assel 5 one that
nacessanly takes substantial period of fime to get ready for its intended use.

All other borrowing cosls are charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss in the pariod (0
which thiay are incumed.

L.  Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognieed when the Company has a present obligation a3 & rezult of 2
past evant, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econamic benefits will be
fequired to softle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amaount of the
ohligaticn. The timimg of recogniion and gquantification of the liability require the
application of judgemeni to exialing facts and circumatances, which can be subject 1o
change, Singe the cash oulflows can take place many yvears in the future, the camydng
amounts of provisions and abilities are reviewed regularty and adjusted 1o take account of
changing facts and circumstances.

Contingent labililies are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote
Contingent assats ara neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statemeants.

M. Employes Benefils
iy Short term employee benefits:
The undiscounted amount of shor term employee benefits expacted to be paid in

exchange for tha services randerad by employass are recognised as an expanse
during the pericd when the amployees render the senvices,

e
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i)

The Company Is exempted from Paymeni of Gratuty Act, 1972 in view of its
sirength of employvees belng less than threshoid limit atiracting the applicatdity of
the said statule and as such no provisicn has beaen made (or the said Hability. Leawve
encashment is not provided on actuaral basis in view of employees being less than
10 and sameis charged on actual basis,

M. Earnings PerShara

1}

]

Basic Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is compuled by dividing the net proft for the perod
altributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by the welghted average
numiber of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. The weighted
average rumber of equity shares oulstanding during the financial vear and far all
perinds presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the
comnversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity
sharas outstanding, withoul a corresponding change inresources.

Diluted Earnings per share:

For the pumpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, thenet profif for the panod
attributable o equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period s adjusted for the effects of all didutive potental equity
sharas

0.  Critical Estimates and Judgments.

Tha preparation of the financisl statements required the Management to exercizs
judgment and to make estimates and assumplions. These estimates and aszociated
assumplions are based on histoncal experiences and vardous other facters that are
believed to ba reasocnable under the circumstancas, Actual results may diffar from thess
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Fevision to accounting estimates are recognisged in the peroed in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects anly that peried, or in the period of the revision and future
peicds if the revision affects both current and fuburs period.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are;

Estimated useful life of Tanglble Assets

The Company reviews he useful lves and carrying amount of proparty, plant and
equipment at the end of aach reporting period, This reassessment may result in
changs in depreciation and amorisation expense in future perods,
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vi.

Estimation of Current Tax Expense and Income Tax Payable | Receivable

The calculation of Company's tax charge necessarily involves a degree of
estimation and judgement in respect of cerain items whose tax treatment cannol
be finally determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax
authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal process. The final resolution of
some of hase itams may give rise o material adjustment io laxable profisiosses.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Al each balance sheet date, based on historical default retes obsarved over
expected iife, the management assesses the expected credif loss on cutstanding
recenvables,

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent o which deferred tax assets can be racognised Is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxablie income against which the
deferrad tax assets can be utilised.

Caontingent liahilities

At each balance sheel date basiz, the managemant judgmeant, changas in facls and
lagal aspects, the Company assessas the requiremant of provisions against the
oufstanding warranties and guarantess. Howsaver, the actual future outcome many
b different from this judgement

Fair value maasurementis

Managemant applies valuation lechniques o determine the falr value of financial
instrumeants (whare active market guotes are not avalable). Thia involves
daveloping estimates and aesumptiona consistent with how markit participants
wiould price the instrument,

Gl
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Grouping to the Financlal Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
Mote:4

DEFERRED TAX
WORKING-AY 2025-26 | AY 2025-26 AY 2024-25

W.OLY. as per Income Tax
Actas on 31.03.2025 12.23 14.38

W.0.V. as per Companies
Act as on 31.03.2025 2.49 251

Difference 975 11.87
Defarred Tax
Asset @ 26% 2.53 3.08

Deferred Tax Assest
as on 31.03.2024 2.53 3.09

Cpening Deferred
Tax Asset 3.09 3.62
Closing Defered
Tax Asseal 2.53 3.09
Amount 1o be provided
during the year (0.55) {0.53)
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Notes to the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Note Particulars As at As at
MNo. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

5 Dther non-current asset
Capital Advances,
Advances other than capital sdvances

Sacurity Deposits; 3.00 3.00
3.00 3.00
i Inventories
Stock-m-frade
(i respect of goods acquired for trading). 72510 9458.56

725.10 958.56

T Trade receivables

Trade Recevahles —_ 040
Less: Expecltad Cradil Loss — —

—_ 0.40
Trade Recevables congidered good - Secured — —
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured —- 0.40
Trade Hecaivablas which have significant — —_
increaze in Credit Risk: and — —
Trade Receivahbles - cradit imgaired. — —

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#
Less G 1-2 2-3 Mora | Total
than | months| years | years than
& 1 3
months| years yaars
Undisputed Trade
recaivablas —
considered good — - - — - —
8 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash Balanoe T2 7.02
Bank Balance .84 1.11
T.B6 312
g Other currant assals
Balance with Revenue Authorties (BSE & MSME) —_ 13.62
Balanca with broker oo —
Advance o Creditors —_ —
Dividand Recalvable 1.52 —
Short Term Loans & Advances 0.87
2.459 13.62
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10 Share Capital {Amount in Lakhs)
As at 3=t March 2025 As at 3st March 2024
Mo. of Shares Amount No. of Shares| Amount

Autherised Share
Capital :
Equity shares of
Fs 1/- Each 725,000,000 7,250,000 | 725,000,000 7.250.00
Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/- Each 250,000 250.00 250,000 250,00

Issued, Subscribed
and fully paid up
Equity shares of

Rs 1/- each

fully paid up 73,121,884 7031.22 | 703,121,889 708122

7.031.22 7.031.22

Terms [ Rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity share having par value of Rs 1 per share. Each
holder of equity share is entiled to one vote per share held. All the equity shares rank pan
passu in all respacts including but not limited o entitiement for dividend, bonus issue and
rights issue. In the event of iquidation, the equily shareholdars are eligible to receiva tha
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all liabilities in proportion to their
sharaholding.
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Details of shareholders having more than 5% of the total equity shares of the Company

Class of shares/

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

Mame of shareholder MNo. of Shares % held Mo. of Shares % % held
Inrocant Invesimant
Consultanis LLP 83,167,800 11.83% 83,167,800 11.83%
Sandeep Ispat
Traders LLP 75,951,000 10.80% 75,051,000 10.80%

Details of Sharaholding Pattern of Promoter and Promoter Group of the Company

Class of shares/

As at 31st March 2025

As at 3ist March 2024

Name of shareholder No. of Shares| % held |Mo. of Shares % % held
Promoter:

Harsh Jain 452 0.00% 452 0.00%
Marash Manakchand Jain 5,850,000 0.83% 5,850,000 0.83%
Promoter Group:

Inocent Investment

Consultants LLP 83,167 800 11.83% 83,167,800 11.83%
Sandeep Ispal Traders LLP| 75,951,000 10.80% 75,851,000 10.80%
Swagatam Tradewvin Ltd. 12363720 1.768% 12363720 1.¥6%

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding and amount at the beginning and at

the end of the year

Particulars

As at 31st March 2025 |

As at 31st March 2024

MNo. of Shares

Amount

Mo. of Shares Amount

Equity Shares of
par value Rs 1/- fully
paid up

Quistanding at the
baginning of the year

Add: Issued during the
year

Outstanding at the end
of the year

703,121,888

7.031,22

703,121,688 7,031.22

703,121,689

7.031.22

703,121,889 7.031.22

{82}
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Statement of changes In equity for the period ended 31st March, 2025
MNote: 11

A.  Equity Share Capital {Armounts in Lakhs)
Particulars Balance Changes Balance
as at during the as at
April 1, 2024 year March 31, 2025
703121888 Eguity shares of
Rs. 1/- each 7.031.22 - 7,031.22

B. Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus
Capital Securitias Retained | General Total
Reserve | Premium Earnings | Reseve
Reserve
Balance at the beginning
of the reporting period 0.27 17081 [8.918.71} 20529) (B452.34)
Total Comprehensive
Income for the year - - 1,256.35 - 4,256.35
Transfer to retained
earnings - - - - .
Balance al the end of
the reporting period 0.27 170.81 (7,662.36) 295.29| (7,195.99)
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{Amounts in Lakhs)
Note Particulars As at As at
No. st March 2025 31st March 2024
Mon Current Liabilities
12  Other non-current liabilities
Statutory dues payable 11.88 1210
11.88 12.10
Current Liabilities
13 Borrowings
Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand
from other parties 535.62 930.12
Loans from related parties 5470 1.75
890.32 1.621.87
14 Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Unsecured considered good — 170,36
— 770.36
15  Other current liabilities
Expenses Payable 1.15 1.64
Professional Tax Payable 0.00 (0.00)
Balance with Revenue Authorities 4.80 446
6.05 6.09
16 Provision

Frovision for current tax
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{Amounts in Lakhs)

Note Particulars As at As at
No. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
17  Revenue From Operations

Sale of securities 6193.25 458 45

Speculation Trading Account Profit 3.65 —

Total 6,196.91 458.45
18 Other Income

Dividend Income 1.68 —=

Interest Income 0.53 0.03

Other non-operating income — G00.00

Office Space Sharing Income 1.20 1.20

Total 3.42 601.23
19 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Traded securities 4516.15 —
20 Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and work-in

progress Stock at the begning of the year

Stock in Trade 058.56 1.016.38

Total {a) 858.56 1,016.38

Stock at the end of the year

Stock in Trade 2510 058.56

Total (b) 725.10 958.50

Changes In Inventories (a-b) 233.45 57.83
21 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 2.04 0.53

Total 204 0.53
22 Finance cosis

Interest 6621 44.83

Other borrowing costs

- Bank Charges 2 2

Total 66.21 44.83
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Motes to the Profit and Loss Alc for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025
{Amounts in Lakhs)

Note Particulars As at As at
Mo. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

23 Other expenses
Audit Fees 1.00 1,00
Advertisment 0.28 0.50
Annual Custody Fees 1.77 1.64
Annual Maintenance Charges 0.14 -
Appeal Fees - 0.01
E Voting Charges 1.56 1.02
Cirectors Sitting Fees 0.32 0.32
Cemal Charges om -
Electricity Expenses 0.66 0.50
Legal & Professional Fees 0.11 1.00
Listing Fees =13 4,35
Monitoring Foreign Investment Charges 012 0.10
Office & Administration expensas 0.10 016
Fostage & Telegram - 0.25
Printing & Stationery 0.15 0.68
Professional Service Charges 1.75 1.61
Speaculation Loss 0.86 004
Webzite Development Charges - 0.35
Penalty Amount 13.62 226
Profession Tax 0.03 0.03
Professional Fees 0.25 250
Regisirar Fees 0.85 0.36
Repairs and Maintanance 0.08 -
Telephone Expensas 0.21 0.20
ROC Filling Fees 0.08 0.36
Office Rent 8.0a 744
Transaction Charges - 0.66
Late Payment Charges 0.1 0.03
Sundry Balance Written off 87.78 0.00
Stamp Duty & Registration Chargas 0.10 -
Trading in Dervative - Prafit / Loss 0.41 -
125.56 27.15
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(Amounts in Lakhs)

Mote Farticulars As at As at
No. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
24 Earnings per Share
(Basic & Diluted)
Met Profit / (loss) after tax for the year (in Rs.) 1256.35 02573
Profit / loss attributable to equity
share holders {(in Rs.) 1256.35 026,73
Weighted Average Mumber of equity shares
outstanding during the year 703,121,B89 703,121 889
Basic and Diluted Eamings Fer Share (Rs.) 0.17 013
Face Value per Share (Rs.) i 1
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25 Failrvalue measurements
Financial instruments by category:
As at 31st March 2025
ﬂqrr_l.ran Value Fair Value hierarchy
Particulars rmeLlPmoc] Amorised Tedal level 1| Lewel2 |level 3| Towl
Cosl
Financial Assols
(1} Invesstiments a Fl a
(il Trade Recewvable . . .
{ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 785 798
(v} Logns - £
TOTAL - = 786 THE| -
Financlal Llahilites
() Curent Borowengs . 290,32 B 32
{ii} Trade Paysbles i = : :
{11 Crinser Financial Liablities
TOTAL - - #9032 B80.32| -
As at 31st March 2024
Carrying Value Fair Value higrarchy
Particulars FUTRLIFITOG] Amorised | Toal level 1| LeveiZz |Levei] Tow
Cioal
Financial Assets
i} Imvestrants
(ii] Trade Recanable 040 040
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents . 3 812 B12| -
(i) Logas
TOTAL - - 852 B52| -
Financial Liabilities
{i| Current Bormowings = 162147 162187 -
(i) Trade Payables Tas 17036
(i) Ciber Financisl Liabiilas - -
TOTAL - . 23922 2382221 -

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and bank balances, current loans, curmeni
borrowings, and rade payables are considared 1o be approximataly equal lothe fairvalue.
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Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the financial azsets and liabilities are included at the amount that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
betwesn market participants at the measurement date.

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values

of the financial instruments that are

(a) recognised and measurad at fair value and,

(b} measured at amortised cost and for which fairvalues are disclosed in the financial
statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value,
the company has classified its financial instruments inio the three levels presoribed
underthe Indian accounting standard. An explanation of each level s as follows :

Levael 1: Level 1 hiararchy includes financial instruments measurad using quoted
prices, Forexampie, listedequity instruments that have quoted market price,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments thal are not traded in an active markel
[for example, raded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
technigues which maximise the use of chservable market data and rely as litle as
possible on entity-specific estimates, If all significant inputs required 1o fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument isincluded inlevel 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputsis not based on observable market data,
the instrument s induded in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities,
contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in leval 3.

Valuation technigues used to determine fair valueg

Significant valuation techniques usad to value financial Instruments include: « the fair
value of forward foreign exchange confracts is determined using forward exchange
rates atthe balance sheet date.,

o Lse ofquoted market price or dealer quotes for similar instrumenis

0 Using discounted cash flow analysis,

The fair values computed above for assets measured at amortised cost are based on
discounted cash flows using a curent bormowing rate. They are classified as level 2 fair
values in the fairvalue hierarchy due tothe use of unobservable inpuls.

[Fa]
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26 Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure o the following risks ansing from financial instruments:
= Creditrisk

« Liquidity risk ; and

«  Marketrisk

A, Cradit risk

Credit risk refers to the nsk of default on its abligation by the counterparty resulting
in a financial loss. The company is exXxposad to credit risk from s operating
activities (primarily for trade receivables and loans) and from itg financing
activities (deposits with banks and other financial instruments).

Credit risk management

Credit risk iz managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously manitaring the credit worlhiness of customers towhich the Company
grants credit terms in the normal course of business, The Company establishes
an abowance for doubiful debls and impairmeant that represents its estimate of
incurred losses in respect of trade and ctherreceivables and invesiments.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March, 2024 and 2025
ia the carrying value of rach class offinancial assets

i Trade and otherreceivables

Credit risk on trade receivables is limited based on past expenence and
managemeant's estimaie.

ii Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company held cash and bank balance with credit worthy banks of
Rs.7,85,629.35 at 31st March 2025, and (Rs.8,12,286.47/- at March 31,
2024). The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the
Company generally invesis in deposits with banks where credit risk is
largely perceived to be extremely insignificant.

=
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Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk iz definred as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or
meet its obligations on time or af & reasonable price. For the Company, fiquidity
risk arises from obiigations an account of financial liabilities — trade payables and
borrowings.

Liguidity risk management

The Company's approach o managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have
sufficient funds fo mest its liabilities when due without incurming unaccepiable
losses. |n doing this, management considers both normal and stressed
conditions, Amaterial and sustained shortfall in our cash flow could undermine the
Company's credit rating and impair investor canfidence.

The Company maintained a cautious funding strategy, with a8 positive cash
balance throughout the year ended 31st March, 2025 and 315t March, 2024, This
was the result of cash delivery from the business. Cash flow from operating
activities provides the funds to service the financing of financial kabiliies on a day-
to-day basis. The Company's treasury department regularly monitors the rolling
foracasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on—going basis to meel operational
needs. Any short term surplus cash generated by the operating entities, over and
above the amount required for working capital management and other operational
requirements, areretained as cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required).

Market risk

Market risk is the nsk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange
rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company's income ar the
value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is atiributable to all
markel risk sensitive finandal instrumenis. The Company i exposed (o market
risk primarily related to interest rate risk and the market value of the investments,

i Currancy Risk
The funclional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. Currency nsk is

not materal, as the Company does nol have any exposure in foreign
CUFrancy.

rsel
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow
interes! rate risk. Fair value interest rale risk s the risk of changes in fair
values of fixed interest bearing investmeants because of fluctuations in tha
interest rates. Cash flow interestrate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctustions
inthe interest rates.

Exposure to interestrate risk

According to the Company interest rate risk exposure is only for floating rate
borrowings. Company does not have any floating rate bormowings on any of
the Balance Sheet date disclosed in this financial statements.

Price Risk

Frice risk is the risk that the fair valee of a financial instrument will fluctuate

due to changes in markel traded price. It arises from financial assets such as
investments inquated instruments.

a Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate Instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss. Therefora, a
change ininterest rates at the reporing date would not affect Profit or
Loss,

b Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate Instruments

The company does not have any variable rate instrumeant in Financial
Assels or Financial Liabilites.

The company is exposed to price risk from its investment in equity
instruments classified in the balance sheet at fair value through other
comprahensiva income.

(5]
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27

Capital Management
The company's objectives when managing capital are to

L safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, sa that they can continue to
provide returns for shaeholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

L] maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the costof capital.

The capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgement of the
appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-today needs.
We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions and the nsk characternstics of the underlying
assets.

The managemeant monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to
shareholders. The Company will take appropriate steps in order tomaintain, or i
necassary adjust, its capital structure.

No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to orin  any ofther person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermadiarias”), with the understanding, whather recorded in
writing or othaerwise, that the Intermadiary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
imvestin other persons or anfities identified in any mannerwhatzoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security orthe like on
beballof the Ullimate Benaficiaries,

Mo funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by tha Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwizse, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities idenfified in
any mannar whatsoever by or on bahalf of the Funding Pary ("Ulimate Baneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries.

Additional Regulatory Information

(i  The Company does nolt have any immovable property, hence no disclosure
regarding fitle deads of Immovable Property (other than properties where tha
Company is the lessee and the lease agreaments are duly executed in favour of
the lessae) is required to be disclosed.

ey |
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(i)

{iii}

{iv)

(v

(vi)

{vii}

{vii]

i}

During the year, the Company has not revaluad its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right-of-Lse Assels).

The company does not hold any intangible assets during the yvear March 31, 2025.

MNo proceadings have been Inttiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami propery under the Banami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 20186) and rules made
thereunder.

No Loans or Advances in the nature ol loans has been granted to promolers,
Directors, KMPs and the related parties {as defined under Companias Act, 2013)
during the year.

The Company has nol bean declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
instifution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not barrowed any amount from banks or financial institutions
onthe basis of security of current assels.

As per the information available with us. the Company did not have any
transactions with companies struck off during the financial year.

Following Ratios to be disclosed:-
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Particulars

Formula

31st
March,
2025

31st
March,
2024

Change

Where the change
between the ratios of
Previous Year and
Preceding Pravious
Year exceeds 25%. the
Management has
provided following
explanation for the
EAMmE,

(a) Current
Ratia,

Current
Assets/Current
Liablity

0.82

0.41

100.65%

The significant
increase in the
current ratio is
mainly due fo the
adjustment of *8.58
crores worth of
secyrities held with
Guiness Securities
Limited against the
outstanding payabla
of ©7.70 crores. This
adjustment led to a
substantial reduction
in current lizbiiities,
thereby improving
tha cumrent rato.

(b} Debt-Equity
Ratio,

Total
Debt/Shareholder's
Equity

(5.40)

(1.14)

373.46%

The change is dus
to significant
decrease in
borrowings during
the year as
compared to the
pravious year,

(c) Debt Service
Coverage
Ratio,

Eamings after tax
but before interest,
depraciation and
exceplional items
fMnterest expense +
principal payments
of long term loans

13.98

19.21

-8.02%

MNA

(8]
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Parliculars Formula 31st 31st | Change Where the change
March, | March, hetween the ratios of
2025 2024 Previous Year and
Preceding Pravious
Year exceeds 25%. the
Management has
provided following
explanation for the
Same
(d) Return on Met Profit before (7.63) | (0.65) | 1067.24 | The change is due
Equity excaptional %  [to significant
Ratio, ilems!Shareholder increase in net profit
s Equity and shareholders
Equity during the
year as compared o
the previous yeaar,
(e} Invaniony Sales/Average 1.584 012 | 1485.56 | The change is dua
turnover Inventory %  [tosignificant
ratio, increase in sales
during the yoar as
compared to the
Previous year
if] Trade MNel cradi 774614 9066 | 767233 i
Receivables |Sales'Average % ;I;h:iﬁ;ncgﬁtm i
turmover ratio,| Trade Receivables i o i e
during the year as
compared o the
pravious year
(g) Trade Total 2.03 NA [ NA
payables Furchases/Average
turnaver Trade
ratio, payables
{h} Net capital Mal Sales/Caplital (37.61) | (0.32) 11558 |The change is due
turnover Employed 27%  |to significant
ratio, Increase in net profit

and shareholders
Equity during the
year as compared 1o
the previous year,
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Particulars

Formula

31st
March,
2025

31st
March,
2024

Change

Where the change
between the ratios of
Previous Year and
Preceding Pravious
Year exceeds 25%. the
Management has
providad following
gxplanation for the
Same

(1] Net profit
ratio,

MNet Profit'Met
Sales

.20

2.0

-89.97%

The change is dug
1o significant
increase in nel profit
and Sales during the
year as compared o
the pravious year,

(]} Return on
Capital
employed,

EBIT/Capital
Employed

(8.03)

{0.64)

1072.24
b

The change is dua
to significant
Increase in nel profit
and capilal
employed during the
year as compared o
the pravious yaar.

(k) Return on
invesirment.

Met
Profit/Investments®
100

MNA

Where,

Shareholder's Equity = Equity 3hare Capital + Reserve and Surplus
EBIT = Eaming before interastand Tax
Capital Employed = Share holder's Equity + Long term debt
MetAssets = Total Assats - Current Liability

INSERT-t-Tax Rate

Current Liability= Total Current Liabiities-Current maturities of non currant bormowing

(8]
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[

()

(i)

{3l

[y

[xv)

(v

31.

The Company hes nof traded or invested in Crypto curmency or Vimuel Cummency dunng the
financial year 2024-25,

Due to Non-availability of information about the amount dues to smallimicro underaking, we are
unabetocomment that the inferest if any is due to such undertaking or nodl

Thara is no obligation in respectof gratuity and leave ancashment during the year March 31,2025

Balances are relied upon as per books of accounts wherever the confirmations from debtors
feraditors /Loans [Advances are nol available. Debtors and Creditors Balances ara subject 1o
Confirmation, Deblors & Creditors Balances are a5 per Management Represantation and rebed
upon by the Auditors,

Corporate social responsibility

al Amount required to be spent by the company during the year MA
4]} Amount of expenditure incurred A
cl Malura of CER activitias MHA

There i no “undisciosed income” which has been reportad by the Company durng the
assessmant.

Cther Income of Rs. 600,000,000/ includes amourt recoverad by the management from
Shreapati Developars & Bulldars Lid. Tha said parly was praviowshy written off by the Company
Therefars, on receiving such amount, the same has baen classhad as Other Incoma.

Related Parly Transactions & Related Party Disclosures undor Ind AS-24 “Related Party™

Az per |ndian Accounting standard 24 "Related Party Dizclosurse” the Company’s related parliss
and tranzactions with them are disdosed belaw.

A Direclors, Key Management Personnel {KMP] & refatives of KMP

Name of Related Party Relation with company
1| MNaresh Jain Whole time director & CFO
2 | Preeti Jayesh Doshi Independent Director
4 | Rajendra Redekar Independent Director
4 | Suryakant Kadakane Indepandent Director
§ | Prema Mehla Company Secratary
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€)

B) Companies [ Firms in which Director, Director's relatives are Directors!

Sharehaolder ! Partners

Mame of Related Party

Cinch Mullitrade Private Limited

Aagam Caplial Limited

LI e T

Elan Capital Advisors Private Limited

4 Jupiter City Developars {India) Limited

Transactions during the year (Rs.In Lakhs)
Hature of Transaction Amount
Director Sitting Fees
Preeati Jayesh Doshi 0.08
(0.C8)
Director Sitting Fees
Rajendm Redekar 012
(0123
Director Sitting Fees
Suryakant Maruti 0.12
(0.12)
Salary Expense
Prerna Mehta 2.04
- (0.52)
Loans & Advances Repaid by Company
Maresh Jain 121.15
(543.78)
Loans & Advances Repaid by Company
Cinch Mulitrade Private Limited HNIL
(0.25)
Reni Income
Aagam Capial Limited 1.20
(1.20})
Loans & Advances Repaid by Company
Aagam Capital Limited MIL
{19,60)
Interest on Loan taken
Aagam Capdal Limited NIL
(0.94)
Loans & Advances given by Company
Aagam Capital Limited 244
ML

(=]
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Loans & Advances received back by the company
Aagam Capial Limiled 9.44
MIL
Interest on Loan given
Aagam Capital Limited .36
(ML)
Loans & Advances Taken by Company
Maresh Jain 121.15
(89.50)
Loans & Advances Taken by Company
Jupiter City Developers (India) Limited 80.00
(132.25)
Loans & Advances Repaid by Company
Jupiter City Developers (India) Limiled 21225
(MEL)
Figures in brackets pertains to previous year.
Outstanding balances as on 31st March 2025 (Rs. In Lakhs)
‘Nature of Transaction | Amount
Loans & Advances Taken by Company
Maresh Jain MIL
(MEL )
Salary Expense
Prarna Mehla MIL
(A7)
Director Sitting Fees
Rajendra Redekar NIL
(NEL)
Loans & Advances Taken by Company
Cineh Multitrade Private Limited MIL
(NILY
Rent Income
Aagam Capital Limited MIL
(0.40))
Loans & Advances Taken by Company
Aagam Capital Limiled (0.33)
(MIL)
Loans & Advances Taken by Company
Jupiter City Developars (India) Limited MIL
(132.25)

Figures in brackets pertains (o previous year.
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Other Notes to Accounts

a2

33,

34.

35,

36.

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The Company has no dues fo Micro, Small and Medium enterprizses as at 31stMarch,
2025, on the basis of information provided by the parties and available on record.
Further, thare iz no interest paid [ payabla ta micro and small enlerprises during the said

financial year.

Transactionin Forgign Currency

Sr. No.| Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
1 Earning in Foreign Cumency il Ml
2 CIF Value of Imports il il
3 Expenditurain Foreign Currency il il

Segment Information

Company is engaged in the business of Trading in Shares and incidental activities
thereto which. in the context of Ind AS 108 on Operating Segments, consfifutes a single

repariable segment.

Balance written off during the Year

1. The Goods and Service tax (GST) have been written off during the year as per
Management Estimates and tax opinions obiained stating thatthe said amount is
not payable.

The Company had mamtaned trading and demat accounts with Guiness Securities
Limited since 2014 and availed margin funding facilities. As per the public notice issued
by the Mational Stock Exchange, Guiness Securities Limited has been declared a
defaulter and is currently untracesble. A= of March 31, 2025, the Company held
securities valued at =8 58 14 107 14 in its demat account with Guiness Securities
Limited, Against this, an amount of 27, 70,35,646.19 was payable to Guiness Securifies
Limited. The management has adjusted the value of these securities against the
outstanding payable, resulting in a net recoverable amount of 287, 78 480.95. Due to the
inability to trace Guiness Secunities Limited and recover the balance, the Company has
written off the said amount of =87, 78,450.95 as bad debts under "Other Expenses”inihe
Staterment of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025.
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37. Balance Confirmation
The debit and credit balancas for Unsecured Loans (Loan from Companies & Loan from
Related Parties), Advances. Deblors, Craditors and other Balances are subject o
confirmaton and reconcifiation.

38. Dues/Outstanding Demand pertaining te Pravious Assessment Years
Any Dues and/or Outstanding demands pertaining to any previous Financial Years,
preceding the financial year under audit that are served afterthe end of the financial year
under audit are disclosed in the Financtal Statements of the year in which such
communication or Demand Motice/Order have beenserved.

38, PriorYear Comparatives
Previous year figures have been regrouped, re-amanged or reclassified wherever
necessary to conform to the current year classification. Figures in brackets pertain to
previous year.

For B M Gattani & Co. For MONOTYPE INDIA LIMITED

Chartered Accountants (CIM ;| LTZ900MH197T4PLC2BTS52)

ICAIFRN : 113536W

Balmukund N Gattani (Naresh Jain) (Suryakant Kadakane)
Proprietor Whole Time Director & CFO  Director
Membership No. 047066 DIN: 00291963 DIN: 02272617

UDIN : 2504T706EBMLJLV1B10

Date: 2B052025 [Prerna Mahta)
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary
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